
   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                                   Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   March 11, 2013 – 9:00 a.m. 

   
AGENDA 

 
1. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
2. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
3. Approval of February 11, 2013 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes – For possible action. 
 
4. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
5. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
6. Resolution requesting the State Board of Finance to issue Highway Revenue Refunding 

Bonds – For possible action. 
 
7. Condemnation Resolution – For possible action. 
 

a. Condemnation Resolution No. 425A – I-15 Freeway, from Blue Diamond Road north 
to Tropicana Avenue; Design-Build project; Warm Springs Road, between Las Vegas 
Boulevard and the I-15 Freeway; in the unincorporated area of Clark County, NV – 2 
undivided fee owners, 2 parcels 

 
8. Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated February 20, 2013 – Informational item only. 

 
9. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
10. Adjournment – For possible action. 



Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Clark County    
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   200 Lewis Avenue 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

1 

 
Governor Brian Sandoval 
Lieutenant Governor Brian Krolicki 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 
Controller Kim Wallin 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Bill Hoffman 
Dennis Gallagher 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Sandoval: Oh, there she is.  Madam Controller, can you hear me? 

Wallin: Yes.  I can hear you now, Governor.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: All right. 

Wallin: Can you hear me? 

Sandoval: Yes, very well.  And, Madam Controller, I just advised the audience that we 
are going to move promptly through our Agenda as I understand that you 
have a commitment, and the Lieutenant Governor has a commitment before 
the State Senate at 11:00 a.m. 

Wallin: That’s correct, thanks. 

Sandoval: We’ll move on with Agenda Item No. 1 which is receive Director’s Report.  
Mr. Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor, Board members.  Just some comments from the last 
meeting.  We thank you for your input on the State Highway Preservation 
Report.  We did submit it to the legislature with a lot of amendments along 
the lines of the comments that the Board members had made.  And we also 
finished the 2012 Facts and Figures book.  There’s a lot of useful 
information in that that also went to the legislature by February 1.  We also 
delivered the AASHTO calendars to the Board members, so finally, that’s 
one month gone, but hopefully you’ll use it the rest of the year. 

 I wanted to report on a couple of things that happened recently.  Obviously 
Meadowood Mall has been in the newspaper a lot lately.  And what the 
contractor is currently shooting for is March, get the lanes back configured 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

2 

to the proper location on the freeway.  Probably early spring still for some 
minor other remaining work to the finished, but primarily for the public, 
they’ll notice that the speed limit will go back to the 65 mile per hour in a 
few weeks rather than taking months. 

So the update on that also is that we received about a $1.4 million claim and 
a request for 220 additional working days from the contractor on behalf of 
them and their subcontractor that did the drilling for the drilled shafts.  
Those are the foundations for the bridges that they constructed.  So that’s 
under review by NDOT right now.  The resident engineer in the district will 
have a position that they’ll present to us.  They’re the most informed on the 
project.  They were there day to day, so they can look at the contractor’s 
allegations.  But in a nutshell, it has to do with the self-consolidating 
concrete.  It’s a type of concrete mix that was required by our specifications.  
The contractor is saying that if NDOT dictated material to be used and the 
process to construct those drilled shafts, then it’s NDOT’s responsibility, but 
obviously we have a different position. 

And we’ll look at -- the typical method of settling claims is to have a Claims 
Review Board which will be formed by Administrative Services.  But the 
Claims Review Board is a three-member panel.  So NDOT has a 
representative that’s not directly involved with the project.  HEC selects a 
member that’s neutral.  And we both have a member that is acceptable to -- 
a third member that’s acceptable to both of us.  So it’s a neutral Board that 
hears both positions and makes a determination.  It’s non-binding.  The 
contractor, if he doesn’t agree to what the Board decides, could take it to 
court, or he could just go to court without even going to the Claims Review 
Board.  Well, that’s the update on Meadowood Mall. 

Sandoval: One question, Mr. Malfabon.  Is part of the timing of this project also 
includes the temperature, that there are some things that can’t be completed 
now because of the cold? 

Malfabon: Yeah, we usually don’t like to do permanent striping when it’s so cold.  So, 
yes, they have certain temperatures for striping.  The paving is just about 
completed.  I don’t think there’s any more paving to be done.  Maybe some 
patching here and there.  But for the most part there are some temper 
sensitive issues with some minor amount of work to be remaining.  But we 
were told that by the end of March the lanes will be configured back to their 
normal location. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

3 

 The other unfortunate news is our pilot will be resigning effective February 
15.  So what we’re looking at is to open up the class specifications for that 
position opening.  Right now it’s very specific to the type of airplane that we 
own, the Cessna, and we felt that if there’s other business jets, you know, 
pilots that have experience on other -- flying other business jets, that that 
should be equivalent experience, so we’re going to modify those (inaudible) 
through the Department of Human Resource Management -- Division of 
Human Resource Management and get that changed so that it casts a wider 
net for a pilot that’s well qualified for our plane.  But unfortunately we’ll 
have a couple of months where we’re out of commission again and have to 
use commercial flights. 

 To report on Project Neon, Governor and Board members, we did have the 
RFP for financial and legal services that was approved by the Board to go 
out on the street.  We did the -- had presentations from the firms.  On the 
financial side, Ernst & Young was the successful firm for financial advisory 
services on Neon.  And on legal it’s Nossaman who has been advising on 
the Pioneer Program, so they’re familiar with the program.  But it’s a new 
financial advisor that I wanted to mention, Ernst & Young. 

 Another thing to report to the Board is we had a -- the Board recently 
approved a lot of sweepers for District 2, and one up at Lake Tahoe that 
were federally funded or grant funded in the case of the one at Tahoe.  We 
were trying out sweeping by contract in District 2 on the freeways.  And that 
sweeping contractor Clean Streets  -- NDOT and Clean Streets came to the 
conclusion that we’re going to let them out of that contract because they 
have some issues with -- with winter it’s difficult to estimate the cost of -- or 
how much weather that we’re going to receive.  The snow and ice control by 
our maintenance forces leaves salt sand along the road.  So we have to sand 
the road in order to make it safe for the public, but the sweeping contractor 
felt that it was a lot more than he could handle as far as the cost of sweeping 
up all that sand on the shoulders. 

And there were some other requirements that he tried to comply with, but it 
was just a lot less cost -- or a lot less profitable for him than he considered.  
And we weren’t getting the type of sweeping that we wanted to and we’re at 
risk of getting fines for air quality.  So we’ve determined that it’s best for 
both parties to cancel that contract and self-perform it with maintenance 
forces, particularly since we’ll be getting those new sweepers, we’ll have 
reliable equipment too.  And that concludes the Director’s Report. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

4 

Sandoval: Any questions from Board members?  All right.  We’ll move on to Agenda 
Item No. 2, which is public comment.  Is there any member of the public 
here in Carson City that would like to provide comment to the Board?  
Southern Nevada, is there anyone who’d like to provide public comment?  
We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 3, approval of January 14, 2013 Nevada 
Department of Transportation Board of Director’s Meeting Minutes.  Have 
all the members had an opportunity to review the Minutes, and are there any 
changes? 

Fransway: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: We have a motion to approve by Member Fransway.  Is there a second? 

Krolicki: I’ll second. 

Sandoval: Second by the Lieutenant Governor.  Any questions or discussion on the 
motion?  All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  And one question, in Las Vegas, is Member Martin present? 

Wallin: No, he is not. 

Sandoval: All right.  Motion passes unanimously.  If we would mark Member Martin 
as absent.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 4, approval of agreements 
over $300,000.  Mr. Sisco. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Good morning. 

Sandoval: Good morning. 

Sisco: Turning to Item No. 4, Page 3 of 13.  There are two items requesting the 
Board’s approval this morning.  Two contracts, Infotech Incorporated in the 
amount of $422,800.  That’s part of our e-documents development that was 
legislatively approved and included in the last budget go-around.  And then 
the second item is an amendment to our contract with our Zero Fatalities 
Program, an amendment in the amount of $487,634.33.  Any questions? 

Sandoval: My question on the second one is that we’re consolidating with the 
Department of Public Safety Program, correct? 

Malfabon: I looked into that Governor.  And what we’re doing is getting our contract 
on the same timeframe as the other contract with the Department of Public 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

5 

Safety, Office of Traffic Safety.  And what we’re doing is actually adding 
more scope along the lines of what the original contract was, but getting it 
along the same timeframe.  So it doesn’t double up on the -- double dip into 
the contract.  And also the other thing I found out was that we review the 
invoice that goes to Department of Public Safety, Office of Traffic Safety, 
so we can make sure that they’re above board on their invoicing and that 
we’re getting what we pay for. 

Sandoval And to give a little context to that, my question had been for the Director 
that if we were consolidating our efforts, shouldn’t there be some savings, 
and that was -- the response is that we’re actually expanding some of the 
responsibilities. 

Malfabon: Yes.  The scope is the same, but it just gets extended for a longer term to 
align with the other OTS contract. 

Cortez Masto: Governor, I have a quick question. 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: With respect to the public relations firm, are they a Nevada firm, do we 
know? 

Malfabon: They have a Nevada office.  I think that this firm was based out of Utah.  
And they have a local office in Nevada. 

Cortez Masto: So at the termination of this contract, are we then going to then do another 
RFP, or how is that… 

Malfabon: Yeah.  It’s a large contract, so we will do it… 

Cortez Masto: At the end of this year you’ll be coming back and going out for another 
RFP? 

Malfabon: Yes, yes. 

Cortez Masto: Okay. 

Sandoval: And then would this -- this contract includes federal funds, so we won’t -- 
that state law that allows for some preferences for Nevada contractors won’t 
apply, correct? 

Malfabon: No.  We can’t apply local preferences to federal contracts. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

6 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members? 

Wallin: Governor, this is Kim.  I have a question.  Scott, if you can tell me how the 
Link -- let’s see.  We paid Link last month 175,000, approved the contract, 
and it was also for the e-documents.  How does this fit into this new contract 
that we’re doing?  And then I have another question on the second item.  Do 
we have any performance measures attached to the payments here, you 
know, they’re successes?  Because I know we’ve got our fatalities going up, 
and so if we’re doing all this advertising, I’d like to see that what we’re 
doing is really making a difference.  Or if we don’t have performance 
measures, will we consider putting performance measures as part of the 
payment method in the next contract?  Those are my questions. 

Sisco: Okay.  On that one -- on the e-docs one, I’m going to go ahead and bring 
up… 

Malfabon: Yes.  Madam Controller, this is Director Malfabon.  On the e-docs, this is -- 
Infotech Incorporated is associated with AASHTO which is what a lot of the 
state DOTs use.  And it’s primarily for construction crews in doing the 
oversight of construction projects.  They have to keep track of pay quantities 
and do documentation.  And this would avoid any kind of errors that come 
from dual entry into our payment -- pay estimate system to the contractor 
payments.  So it will be very efficient and avoid payment errors which from 
time to time happen, and we have to settle up.  Either we overpay or 
underpay a contractor occasionally.  And this will address that issue by 
feeding the information from the inspectors’ documentation directly into the 
pay estimate system.  And there will be a check.  If something exceeds the 
plan quantities, there’ll be a check that has to be done by management on 
that construction crew to ensure that that is indeed an accurate quantity 
that’s exceeding the plan quantity. 

Wallin: Okay. 

Malfabon: Regarding the (inaudible) agreement, we didn’t have performance measures 
tied to this specific contract that I’m aware of, but it’s something that we can 
look at in the future.  And it actually is in alignment with what the Federal 
Highway Administration wants to do.  In implementing each state’s 
Strategic Highway Safety Program, they want to look to see that your 
activities are really yielding results.  So this is definitely one activity that’s 
looking at changing the behavior of drivers.  And we could look at for the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

7 

future -- the RFP that goes out in the future after this one expires, we could 
look at performance measures to be added to that. 

Wallin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sisco: We would -- the Director’s recommendation is that the Board approve those 
two requests. 

Sandoval: One last question.  Are we -- and I’m not sure where I was reading this, but 
some states are not in compliance with their safety programs.  Are we in 
compliance in meeting all our requirements? 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  The one area that our Nevada Revised Statutes have to be 
amended, and we actually have it in our bill draft, is the open container law, 
which does not specifically exempt the driver of a limo or a taxicab.  It was 
intended to be that way, but we made some minor changes to the language 
that will make it in compliance.  And as a result of that review of the open 
container law in Nevada, the Highway Traffic Safety Administration told us 
we have to shift about $7 million of funds from our regular project funds to 
safety, and we intend to use it on safety projects.  So as far as the other areas 
where some other states had to address some statutes, we’re actually in good 
shape in those other -- it usually has to do with impaired driving. 

Sandoval: If there are no further questions, the Chair will accept a motion for approval 
of the agreements over $300,000 as described Agenda Item No. 4. 

Krolicki: I’ll move for approval. 

Sandoval: Lieutenant Governor has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 5.  Mr. 
Sisco. 

Sisco: Thank you, Governor.  Starting on Page 4 of 11, this month we have 30, 
which is a fairly small month for us, informational items.  Again, as we 
normally do, we met, went through them, nothing particular that we’re 
going to call out to our attention, so we’ll open it up to any questions, and 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

8 

try to get people up here for any questions or concerns any of you may have 
on any of them. 

Malfabon: And, Governor, I wanted to mention on number 18, that’s with Southwest 
Gas to relocate the gas line along the first phase of Boulder City Bypass.  
It’s a substantial contract, but we include it in here.  Although it’s a right-of-
way agreement that normally doesn’t come for your approval, we thought 
that it was a substantial amount of money and wanted to bring it to the 
Board’s attention. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  And I had a question with regard to Contract 26, which is John 
Wright Associates and the Falcon Capital issue. 

Sisco: Mr. Gallagher? 

Gallagher: Governor, members of the Board, for the record, Dennis Gallagher, Chief 
Counsel.  This is a contract for the individual who will actually issue an 
appraisal for the water rights.  The contract that was before the Board, I 
believe, last month, was for a water engineer to gather up some information 
and data that will be provided to this individual who ultimately will give the 
Board -- the Department and the Board his professional opinion as to the 
value of the water rights that were acquired in the Falcon matter. 

Sandoval: And speaking of the Falcon matter, do we have a final accounting yet for 
them? 

Gallagher: You should have it for next month, Governor.  Last week the arbitrator 
issued what I hope is the last of his orders related to it. 

Sandoval: Me too.  All right.  I have no further questions.  Board members, do you 
have questions with regard to the contracts contained in Agenda Item No.  
5?  Member Savage? 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.   Just one item, Mr. Sisco.  Contract Line Item No. 21 
regarding increase to HDR Engineering’s current contract of 1.6 million.  I 
realize, if I remember correctly, the Seymour Project is still under the 
preconstruction phase with Q and D and HDR, and it caught me off guard as 
being an early increase, this so early in the project.  If you could please 
explain. 

Sisco: Yeah, let me go ahead and bring up John Terry, Assistant Director over 
Engineering. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

9 

Terry: Yeah, and you’re correct.  It is still in the engineering phase of the project.  
They are the engineer that’s doing the design.  And I go to the notes on 
there, additional project meetings to attend the workshops and also develop 
additional bridge rehab plans.  We added additional plans as a part of the 
bridge rehab.  We call it the Carlin Tunnel Project, but really the bridges 
approaching the tunnel are a much bigger part of the project than actually 
the tunnels themselves.  So they are the designer doing the bridge designs. 

Savage: So do the designers -- and this is something we can probably take up in the 
CWG meeting.  Do the designers quantify the amount of meetings they 
attend? 

Terry: Yes.  In other words, we make an assumption at the beginning when we set 
up a scope for a job of, you know, how many meetings, how much project 
management, in addition to how many plan sheets, how many other things 
we assume in the job.  And if the job modifies significantly and more have 
to be added, that can be quantified because there was a number in the 
original contract. 

Savage: Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Terry.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members? 

Wallin: Governor, I have some questions. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller, please proceed. 

Wallin: This is really hard.  Item No. 23 for Harris Corporation for the radios.  This 
project started in 2009, and now we’re extending it to go to 2000 -- the end 
of ‘13, so basically four years.  And one of the reasons they’re talking about 
why they need additional time, can you explain to me what we mean by 
incomplete user inventories and if we think this will finally be done by the 
end of 2013? 

Nelson: Madam Controller, this is Rick Nelson, Assistant Director of Operations.  
This rebanding project, as you noted, started quite a while ago.  And it’s due 
in large part because of interference between the cell phone carriers and our 
800 megahertz frequencies.  Because of that interference, the cell phone 
carrier Sprint Nextel actually was mandated by the FCC to reband our 
radios, our 800 megahertz radios, away from the frequencies that the cell 
phone carrier was using.  So what that meant was everyone that’s on one of 
our -- one of the state 800 megahertz radios had to be physically 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

10 

refrequenced to a different set the frequencies, so that the inventory that 
we’re talking about is not just Nevada DOT inventory, it’s Highway Patrol 
inventory, Nevada Energy inventory, everyone that has an 800 megahertz 
radio.  And so what’s happened is we’ve got down towards the very tail end 
of this project.  There are radios that are continuing to surface that need to 
be rebanded.  And so that’s the purpose of extending this contract to make 
sure that we pick up all of that inventory with all the agencies, all the 
entities that are on the 800 megahertz radio system.  I’d also like to note that 
the entire cost of rebanding was born by Sprint Nextel.  So all the costs that 
we incur are billed to Sprint to reimburse us for that. 

Wallin: Excuse me, can you guys hear me?  I can’t hear Rick. 

Sandoval: Oh, we can hear you Madam Controller.  And I don’t know if she -- I think 
she heard a word you said, Mr. Nelson. 

Wallin: Well, I heard part of him.  I heard part of him and then he faded out, but I 
still can’t hear him. 

Nelson: Okay.  So… 

Sandoval: Can you hear him? 

Wallin: Yes, I can hear him now.  Thank you. 

Nelson: Okay. 

Sandoval: Yeah, here we are talking about broadband. 

Nelson: So the… 

Wallin: Go ahead, Rick. 

Nelson: So the purpose of this agreement is to go pick up and reband all the 800 
megahertz radios that are on the state system, which include NDOT and 
Highway Patrol and Nevada Energy.  And so as we get close to the end of 
this project, we’re discovering there are some odds and ends radios out there 
that do need to be rebanded.  And so the purpose of extending this is to 
allow for that rebanding to happen.  Sprint Nextel is paying all the costs of 
this rebanding, so whatever costs we incur, we bill Sprint, and Sprint repays 
us. 

Wallin: You’re breaking up again. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

11 

Sandoval: Maybe it’s Verizon. 

Wallin: No, you guys can hear me. 

Malfabon: I think the key, Madam Controller, was that Rick said that Sprint Nextel 
covers 100 percent of that -- reimburses NDOT for the expenses of this 
because of the need to move the frequency of the radio system. 

Wallin: Okay.  Good.  Thank you.  And I have one other question, and hopefully 
that microphone won’t cut out.  Item No. 30 for the contractor Wood 
Rodgers, for the Tahoe Environmental Improvement.  That contract started 
nine years ago in 2005, and we’ve been amending it, you know… 

Malfabon: Yes.  We… 

Wallin: …since then, and so it’s been going… 

Malfabon: We definitely -- Madam Controller, in response, we definitely have given 
that direction to our technical staff to end this contract and put out a new 
RFP for services, not to just keep extending it as has happened in the past.  
This current one is just a time extension, but point taken on that, that this has 
been going on for years, and we need to stop doing contracts that way. 

Wallin: Thank you.  That was my question, if you’re finally go out to bid.  Thank 
you.  That’s all my questions. 

Malfabon: Any additional questions?  Otherwise, I will note, Governor, Board 
members, there were no contracts that were awarded during the time, and 
there are no settlements or other informational items. 

Sandoval: Board members, do you have any further questions with regard to Agenda 
Item No. 5?  Member Fransway? 

Fransway: Just a follow-up on Madam Controller’s concerns or comments on Item 23.  
Am I right then that the carrier will reimburse NDOT for the entire cost, or a 
portion of? 

Malfabon: For the entire cost. 

Fransway: Okay.  Does that include the original agreement also? 

Malfabon: Does it, Rick? 

Nelson: Yes. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

12 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  So the entire 1.1 million will be reimbursed.  And how long will that 
be after the project is completed? 

Malfabon: We submit for reimbursements as we get any costs in, and it’s kind of a pay 
as you go.  So any time we incur costs, we immediately -- so we’ve been 
getting reimbursed all the way along on this. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thanks, Governor. 

Sandoval: Anything further, Mr. Sisco? 

Sisco: Nope. 

Sandoval: Okay.  We’ll move on.  Thank you.  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 
6, approval of Amendments and Administrative Modifications to the FFY 
2012-2015 STIP. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Assistant Director for Planning, Tom Greco. 

Greco: Morning, Governor, Members.  How is the mic working with the remote 
listeners? 

Wallin: I can hear you right now.  Thank you. 

Greco: All right.  Good news.  Here we go.  We’re asking the Board’s approval on 
two amendments and two modifications.  And if we look at the Agenda item 
in the handout and turn to amendments, there are two that were generated by 
Washoe RTC.  They both involve moving up the southeast connector to an 
earlier date and updating the air quality studies.  And then Attachment B 
looks at two modifications out of RTC South.  And the first one, 
modification 15 deals with an I-11 study, and the second one is amending 
the STIP, adding in the 3 million on Neon.  And we discussed the legal and 
financial services earlier on.  With that, any questions on any of the items? 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item No. 6?  
Anything further? 

Greco: Thank you so much. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  If there are no questions, the Chair will accept a motion for 
approval of the amendments as described in Agenda Item No. 6 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

13 

Savage: So moved. 

Sandoval: Motion by Member Savage.  Is there a second? 

Cortez Masto: Second the motion. 

Sandoval: Second by the Attorney General.  All those -- any questions or discussion on 
the motion?  All those in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 7, approval of 
the Strategic Highway Safety Plan Annual Report. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Chuck Reider who is our current Chief of the Safety 
Division, soon to be retiring. 

Reider: What? 

Malfabon: You told me first, Chuck.  Is going to present this Strategic Highway Safety 
Plan Annual Report. 

Reider: Good thing I showed up today. 

Malfabon: He’s kidding me. 

Sandoval: I just want to know when the effective date is. 

Reider: Thank you, Rudy.  My name is Chuck Reider.  I am the Chief Safety 
Engineer for NDOT and I want to talk to you today about traffic safety.  I 
want to start with this slide because I’m going to be going -- I’m going to 
talk a lot of numbers and statistics, but Zero Fatalities is about personal 
responsibility and accountability.  And I like this presentation because 
instead of one picture is worth a thousand words, here’s a thousand pictures 
that are worth two words, zero fatalities.  And it takes all of us, every time 
we get in our car, to get everybody home safely.  So I just want to start with 
that and just keep that in mind. 

 Today I want to talk a little bit about the contributing factors to crashes and 
kind of give you a feel for what’s that like.  Talk about the annual report, 
this is our first annual report because we’ve formalized our performance 
measures, that’s why it’s -- this is the first year for that.  I want to touch on 
Clark County on what’s going on there in terms of crashes and the types of 
things that we’re doing to address that.  And then trends to consider.  So 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

14 

here’s some things to think about as we go forward.  My hope is that by the 
end of my chat that I’ve talked a little about what Nevadans can do and how 
have we been effective, have we been effective in what we’ve been doing. 

 So I’m going to give you a quote from Peter Kissinger.  He’s the CEO of 
AAA Foundation.  Changing driver behaviors is not rocket science, it’s 
harder.  Okay.  And I’m going to give you an example why he might say 
something like that.  And this is a Venn diagram and there’s essentially 
three contributing factors to crashes.  There’s roadways, there are vehicles 
and there’s drivers.  And you can see, if I can get this going, drivers are the 
biggest contributor.  And if you go -- I might have to take this if I can do 
that.  So 57 percent of the time it’s the driver alone that caused that fatal 
crash.  And then, you know, these rings intertwine, so 27 percent of the time 
it’s the roadway and the driver.  That’s our challenge.  Our biggest challenge 
is driver behavior, and that’s the hardest thing to try to correct. 

There’s actually a national project that I’m a part of as a panel member.  It’s 
$40 million to get a better handle on what are drivers doing and reacting to 
the roadway.  And they have almost 3,000 people with equipment in their 
vehicles monitoring what they’re doing.  There’s your volunteers.  And it’s 
a six-year project.  It’s about halfway done.  I’m really looking forward to 
seeing the information that comes out of that.  It’s really sort of an ambitious 
project. 

 So there’s a lot of, well, we don’t know exactly what’s going on.  The 
Strategic Plan, which this Board approved in 2011, and it’s right here, and I 
would happily give you a copy if you don’t have one, just let me know.  We 
developed it in -- we revised it in 2010.  This Board approved it in 2011.  As 
you know, it’s a framework on how Nevadan transportation professionals 
can improve traffic safety through the four Es, and from state, federal, local, 
all our partners.  We’re trying to get together.  And the strategic plan 
concept is novel in the fact that we’re trying to get rid of those stove pipes 
and we all acknowledge that engineering -- you remember that circle of 
engineering or roadway.  We’re just one piece of that puzzle, and we can’t 
solve the problem.  The engineers, as much as I’d like to say we could, we 
can’t, and we acknowledge that. 

When we looked at our data, we have five critical emphasis areas that you 
can see there.  I want to show you from the report, first of all, if you look at, 
I guess, the graph or the chart on the right-hand side, the magnitude between 
these five emphasis areas.  And you can see between ‘04 and ‘11 lane 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

15 

departures accounted for about 39 percent.  They were a contributing factor 
you could say in 39 percent of the fatal crashes.  And you could see through 
the five emphasis areas, their percentages.  You also note that that’s more 
than 100 percent because somebody might not be wearing their seatbelt and 
they run off the road and there’s a fatal crash occurs.  We can’t really judge 
is it because they weren’t wearing their seatbelt or because they ran off the 
road, so that crash is counted in both of those bars there. 

 Now, one of the interesting things is when you look over time -- so this is 
our five emphasis areas here.  And when you look over time from 2004, 
there’s been pretty good progress on four of the emphasis areas, particularly 
lane departures.  But you also notice the pedestrians since about 2009 have 
been on the increase, and I think they increased again in 2012.  So that is an 
area that we’re looking at very carefully. 

 I brought this slide just to -- this is sort of the big picture, right.  When we 
do our plan, I wanted to show you that the fatality line here is red.  And you 
can see it goes up and down every year.  And we don’t want to do our 
planning based on what happens from year to year because it jumps around.  
It’s sort of a moving target.  We want to look at a five-year rolling average, 
and that’s what this line is.  It gives us sort of a better trend on what’s 
happening.  Here’s our baseline in 2008, and so this is -- this is where we 
want -- this is our goal objectives for every year, and here’s where we want -
- you know, we want to be underneath that.  And up until now, we’re 
beneath that.  That’s good. 

Serious injuries is up above.  And we include serious injuries, because when 
you think of statistics and data, 373, for example, across a whole state for a 
year doesn’t give you a lot of good information on where to invest your 
money.  We need to see other data.  Serious injuries help us focus those 
areas that we might -- locations I’m talking about, physical locations, that 
we might improve, and that helps us make those determinations. 

 In the document that you have, these are just details of that previous slide.   
And when you see the red and the blue, red is fatalities, blue is serious 
injuries.  I just did a little summary to show that when you look at fatalities, 
our five-year rolling average is we’re lower than our objectives, which is 
good.  On serious injuries, we’re higher in three of the five, but, in fact, 
we’re still below our target for this last year. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

16 

 So the really -- the thing I like about the plan is that people working on the 
plan really came up with performance measures.  I didn’t ask them to do 
that.  I said, “Well, would you like to?”  And they said, “Yes, we do.”  And 
it took them a little while to sort out what the right performance measures 
are.  So this is a work in progress when you read the document. 

 I want to move on to just illustrate just two of the strategies that are in that 
plan that we’re working on.  One of them is joining forces.  And John 
Johansen from the Office of Traffic Safety probably has more information 
about it than I do, but what I can tell you is that Nevada is unique in the 
sense that a law enforcement officer can write a citation anywhere in the 
state.  So that allows joining forces.  So several law enforcement agencies 
can gather for one high visibility enforcement project or program.  This is 
just illustrating that with the increase of enforcements, there seems to be 
some sort of correlation and reduction in fatalities.  There’s been more 
investment.  Unfortunately investment has been receding.  It came up a little 
bit, and I think the Office of Traffic Safety is concerned about that funding 
and keeping it strong.  This has been a very successful, in my opinion, 
program, and we would very much like to see this continue. 

 I’m going to move on to giving you an engineering example, if I may.  This 
is State Route 147 in the rural area obviously down in Las Vegas.  There’s 
the urban sort of boundary, you can see it right there.  I chose this because 
we’re working to implement the Highway Safety Manual.  That is a brand 
new manual.  It’s a national document from AASHTO.  It came out in 2010 
with new methodology.  So when we looked at this road, this length of 
roadway, there were 35 crashes over a 7-year period.  But maybe that 
number doesn’t sound too high, but the severity of the crashes that were 
occurring there concerned us, and the nature of the roadway in terms of 
users was changing.  That was our -- what we were observing.  So we 
wanted to see what can we do to improve the safety of this roadway.  It’s a 
rural roadway as you may be familiar with, and through our road safety auto 
program and some subsequent field reviews, we identified six improvements 
that we could do. 

Now, the Highway Safety Manual comes into play because now, using their 
methodology, for the next 20 years we can estimate if we do nothing, there 
will be 90 crashes there.  So if we do nothing, we can expect 90 crashes.  If 
we do one of the alternatives, and this is one of the easiest ones, (inaudible) 
rumble strips, we’ll reduce the crashes by about five.  And if we widen the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

17 

shoulders, we’d reduce them by about 19 or 20, which is very useful 
information.  So now it helps us prioritize, well, maybe we want to do 
something rather than something else.  But the other piece of the puzzle is 
how much it costs, right?  So now, using this methodology we can choose 
between -- we have a menu of things that we can choose from, but we can 
also estimate the benefit in terms of crash reduction and then evaluate the 
cost and come up with the best mix for improving the safety of that 
roadway.  So this is a project that’s in process.  I chose this particular route 
as sort of a pilot using this methodology. 

 So I’m going to move on if that’s okay.  I’m trying to get going here.  I 
know you have a lot to do.  I wanted to end this sort of the annual report 
portion with the Highway Safety Improvement Program which my office 
oversees.  In 2005 we were receiving 5 million.  2006 Safety Loop 
introduced the strategic planning concept and increased our funding.  They 
doubled it.  And then with MAP-21 in 2012 or ‘13, they double it again.  So 
I guess the federal government or the legislation recognizes that benefit.  
Obviously $21 million isn’t going to solve our problem, but I do appreciate 
the fact that there’s more -- we have more resources to utilize. 

When you ask about effectiveness, my office -- when we do a safety project, 
we look at before, you know, before we do the improvement, that helps us 
identify we need to improve the roadway.  We do the improvement and then 
we collect three years of data after in terms of crashes, and then compare the 
before to the after.  Well, what happened?  Well, when you look at those 
years, we had 57 projects that totaled about $9.4 million.  And when we 
looked at the after condition, for example, there were 16 fewer fatal crashes 
after our 57 improvements over the course of years.  There was 1200 fewer 
crashes in total.  And if you look at it from an economic perspective, saving 
those 16 lives, that’s equates to $96 million.  So we spent $9.4 million and 
received, according to FHWA, using their estimate, we saw a benefit of $96 
million. 

 I want to move to Clark County because I know that’s a concern for 
everybody here in the state.  And I just picked this article.  I’m sure there’s 
easy to find articles about what’s going on in Las Vegas.  But compare that 
to Chicago -- it was also easy to see an article in this particular case for 
Chicago.  They’re experiencing the same concern as we are here in Las 
Vegas or in Nevada.  And the article down below indicates that there was a 
seven percent increase nationally in fatalities as a result of traffic incidents.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

18 

And Nevada is pretty much right along with that national trend, 
unfortunately. 

I want to show you this -- so the blue line is our state fatalities from 2002 to 
2012.  And the 2012 number is not final, but that’s a pretty good estimate.  
And the green line below is Clark County.  And the thing that is on 
everybody’s mind is that big jump from ‘11 to ‘12.  Now, before I said, you 
know, those numbers move up and down, but that’s a big jump.  That’s not 
just, you know, maybe a year-to-year anomaly.  This is a big jump that 
concerns me and I think everybody.  When you look at our state from 2011 
to ‘12, we had 12 more fatalities.  That’s a five percent increase.  In Clark 
County it was a 45 percent increase.  So across the rest of the state there was 
actually a reduction of fatalities, a big jump in Clark County. 

 I could show you a map, a 2012 crash map, but I wanted it summarize that 
in 2012 there was 152 fatal crashes.  Fifty-one of them were angle crashes, 
so think intersections, think running a red light or something like that.  And 
then 72 were noncollision, which is sort of an anomaly.  It means you didn’t 
hit another car.  You probably hit something.  Something bad happened, but 
you didn’t hit another car. 

This is the crash map in the urban area for 2012.  And I asked my staff to 
take a look from 2008 to ‘12.  I said give me the broadest definition of 
intersection and count the crashes, the fatal crashes.  There was 535.  Only 
four intersections.  Look at all those intersections.  Only four intersections in 
that five-year period experienced three fatal crashes.  And 26 only 
experienced 2.  So what that tells you is that, you know, the fatal crashes 
occur at intersections very randomly or sporadically.  You can’t really plan 
that there’s going to be a bunch over here.  And if I show you 2001 crashes, 
those dots, they just change.  And, again, if you’re looking at fatal crashes 
and doing all your planning that way, you’re trying to hit a moving target.  
And if I was to roll year to year, you’d see those dots just move just like 
that. 

 We’re concerned about the pedestrians in Las Vegas.  There was a 40 
percent increase from ‘11 to ‘12, but there was also a 60 percent increase in 
motor vehicle occupants.  And I would guess that half of those folks were 
not wearing seatbelts.  Even though we have 94 percent when you look at 
the survey, oh, yeah, 94 percent of us buckle up, when you look at the fatal 
crashes, half of those folks aren’t wearing their seatbelts. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

19 

I just put this in to let you know that when it comes to pedestrian fatalities 
it’s very, very typical the pedestrian is at fault.  They’re not crossing in an 
intersection, it’s midblock sometimes, someplace.  And when you look -- 
you guys know Las Vegas, and you know the wide streets, they’re straight 
and go fast.  So that is a big issue.  And how do we find those folks?  That’s 
a big, big challenge.  And how do we get the message to those folks that are 
doing those behaviors? 

 I put this slide up.  I know we’re short on time.  I just want to let you know 
that we’re working pretty hard on this.  In my office we have ten 
infrastructure projects in Clark County for ‘12 and ‘13.  There’s ten projects 
that are statewide that impact Clark County.  The City of Las Vegas worked 
on a left turn crash reduction program that was very successful.  And the 
Office of Traffic Safety has many, many initiatives in the Las Vegas area.  
This is particularly for pedestrians. 

So finally, here’s a couple things to consider.  One is when you look at the 
NITSA regions, so there’s nine regions for the NITSA program, the national 
program, of the six states we’re kind of looking 11 to 12.  We’re kind of in 
the middle.  We’re not the best, we’re not the worst.  We’re kind of in the 
middle there.  This is the slide that really intrigues me.  And, remember, in 
the last few years fatalities nationally were going down very dramatically, 
and the safety committee was trying to figure out, well, what’s the 
correlation, what changed.  And we looked -- not me personally, but smarter 
people than me looked around and they looked at the correlations.  And the 
one thing that really stuck out is when unemployment goes down, traffic 
fatalities go up.  Now, this is 1949, right?  This is 2006.  And if you look at 
the blue against the red, there’s a very strong, I guess, inverse correlation 
between the two. 

Well, what does that mean?  I asked my folks to look at Nevada’s data, and 
we could go back to 2003, and essentially it’s showing the same thing.  And 
obviously during the big recession, that’s right about there.  The first thing 
that comes to mind is if you’re unemployed you’re driving less, right?  So 
that’s the correlation.  That makes sense.  But, in fact, that’s not true 
because nationally when we looked at that, fatalities went down about 15 
percent, the vehicle miles traveled reduced maybe 5 percent.  Okay.  And if 
you look at our Nevada data, here’s VNT, here we are back up to where our 
peak was, and our fatalities haven’t really followed that trend back up. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

20 

So what’s going on?  The answer is, well, I don’t know exactly.  I wish I 
could tell you.  But we’re really looking at the possibilities of how do -- you 
know, our biggest challenge is the why.  We know the how, and we know 
the what, and we know the who, but 45 percent fatality increase in Clark 
County, the population didn’t grow 45 percent.  I mean, the vehicle miles 
traveled didn’t increase 45 percent.  What changed to make that happen?  
And the answer is I can’t tell you right now, but I’m going to look at it a 
little harder. 

 If I can end just very quickly, think of this instead of percentages as people.  
So there’s 100 people that lost their lives.  And we can just get that driver 
ring to the other side, we’re down to 20, from 100 down to 20.  If we can 
work on this problem right here and be successful with it, we could really go 
a long way to bring everybody home.  And I’m a roadway guy, hey, you 
know, I want to get a roundabout at every intersection, grade separate all the 
railroad crossings, flatten all the slopes in Nevada, we can reduce that.  
Vehicles, now you can buy a vehicle that will reduce your speed.  If you’re 
coming up on a car too fast, it’ll hit the brakes for you.  And then, of course, 
there’s the Google car and that’ll be a big thing. 

So where I’m going with this is that we can reduce those and we can get to 
zero fatalities.  That’s my talk for today.  I appreciate your time.  I know 
you’re very busy, so that’s what I had to share with you.  Any questions, I’d 
be happy to answer them. 

Sandoval: That was an excellent presentation, yeah.  Do you also analyze whether the 
accident was attributable to distracted driving and speeding and break it out 
that way, and age? 

Reider: Yeah.  Yes.  There’s two ways I can answer that.  We can look at the crash 
report, and that’s typically how my office looks at the contributing factors, 
what happened.  When it comes to distracted driving, that’s a very difficult 
thing to wean out of the crash report because the form doesn’t really have a 
good place to put that.  And then the person who survives the crash, they 
aren’t going to say, oh, yeah, I was texting.  So you have to sort of infer it a 
different way.  There’s also -- for each fatal crash, there’s -- the law 
enforcement have their fatal crash investigators and they go into much more 
detail about those specifics, and those types -- and the information in the 
fatal crash would be in the much larger report. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  Member Fransway? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

21 

Fransway: Thank you.  I concur that this is a very enlightening report. 

Reider: Thank you. 

Fransway: And in some ways encouraging, but we’re not there yet, obviously.  You 
mentioned a safety committee. 

Reider: Yes. 

Fransway: What’s the makeup of that committee? 

Reider: Oh, thank you for asking that question.  The report that is in your packet is 
intended -- there’s an executive committee.  It’s the Nevada Executive 
Committee on Traffic Safety.  There’s 14 agencies, including NDOT, that 
are represented in that committee.  They’re the executive group that review 
what folks like myself, we’re the worker bees, do in terms of the plan.  So 
there’s the executive committee that’s reviewing the work.  There’s a 
technical working group that oversees the activities of the emphasis area 
teams, right?  So it’s sort of three tiers.  There’s the emphasis area teams, 
there’s five emphasis areas, so there’s five teams.  They’re doing their work 
that help came up with those performance measures.  There’s a working 
group that oversees those activities and kind of collates them and discusses 
what’s going on.  And then we report that back up to the executive group. 

Fransway: Okay.  Are there any members of the public involved in this group? 

Reider: That’s a good question.  And I think not at this point.  We have had private 
citizens on occasion attend, particularly either the C18 meetings or the 
Working Group meetings. 

Fransway: Okay.  I respectfully submit that perhaps we may search out that and see if, 
in fact, maybe the public could have valuable input.  And I’m talking 
specifically (inaudible), Governor, a Governor’s Highway Safety 
Association.  And my -- what really brought this on was, there’s somewhere 
in your report, and I don’t know where it is, but it targets young drivers ages 
16 through 20.  And they do have an impact, not always bad, but they do 
have an impact.  And perhaps the Governor’s Association would be a way 
for young people to be involved in the safety issues and driving in the State 
of Nevada. 

Reider: That’s a good suggestion.  I like that. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

22 

Fransway: That’s the Governor’s thing.  And perhaps maybe there’s someone on there 
now, Governor, that represents those age groups, but I certainly think that it 
may make sense to do something with younger drivers. 

Sandoval: And I will look into that, Mr. Fransway.  I don’t know if it’s a Nevada 
specific board.  It may be a national one.  But perhaps I could ask staff to 
research that and see where Nevada stands, and if we have participated and 
if there’s a potential for (inaudible). 

Reider: If I could, what I can say is that there is a good amount of public input at the 
grass roots level.  So when I mention these committees, et cetera, those are 
mostly from agencies, but, you know, we reach down through the safe 
community partnerships say in Las Vegas, and there’s many grass roots 
organizations where the general public are very involved.  And those sort of 
-- that information kind of comes up to us and we use that information. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you very much.  It is the public that use the roads. 

Reider: Absolutely, yeah. 

Sandoval: All right.  Any other questions?  If there are none… 

Wallin: Governor, I just have a couple questions here.  First question is, under the 
impaired driving, you comment about possibly mandating pending 
legislation that the ignition interlock would be required for repeat DUI 
offenders, so I wondering if that’s something that might be proposed and 
what are the obstacles in proposing that.  And then just a comment and 
observation.  For our senior drivers, a lot of them will take a driver’s course 
to go and keep their insurance rates down at a discount.  I’m wondering if 
that might be something that we could do for, you know, working with 
insurance companies to have our drivers take it.  Because I think a lot of 
people, they take the driver’s test, they start getting into bad habits and they 
forget how they’re supposed to drive, so it might be a way to reeducate the 
public.  I mean, people don’t know to do four-way stops.  They think that if 
the light’s yellow, they need to speed up and go.  So that’s just a suggestion.  
So if you can comment on the interlock law, that’d be great.  Thank you. 

Reider: Thank you.  That was Member Wallin I suspect.  Great.  Thank you for that 
question.  You know, one thing that was very interesting about that, the last 
legislative session I was supporting the mandatory interlock, and then one of 
the judges from Carson City came up and said, well, you know, and he 
wouldn’t say he was against it, but he wasn’t like hugging it and saying this  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

23 

is a great idea, which illustrated to me that the groups I just talked to you 
about really needed to work more with the judicial and not have these sort of 
like surprises like, really, you know, you’re sitting listening to testimony 
and go, oh, wow, I didn’t know that. 

So we did meet with that judge and specifically to ignition interlock.  Their 
concern, and I’m speaking for him, is that it takes some of their leeway 
away.  So they are really onboard with changing behavior, but when it’s 
mandated that they must do it this way, in his opinion, that is not always the 
best way.  It’s just that, you know, if you mandate it, then it must be that 
way.  Now, there is opposing discussion that if you look at states with 
mandatory ignition interlock it does show success.  So the last legislation, 
that really motivated me to get more involved with the judicial folks, and 
we’re working on that now.  And maybe, John, is there -- do you know if 
there’s a bill draft for a mandatory interlock? 

Johansen: Not at this point.  I haven’t seen any language in the bill (inaudible). 

Reider: Okay.  All right.  And that was really a learning experience for me two years 
ago.  In regards to the second in insurance, I really don’t have enough 
information to comment on that, except I’d like my rates lower too.  I’ll take 
a test. 

Sandoval: Do you have any further questions, Madam Controller? 

Wallin: No, I don’t.  But whoever answered the question on the interlock, I didn’t 
hear them because they weren’t talking into the microphone. 

Reider: Is this better? 

Wallin: Yeah. 

Sandoval: I believe it was the gentleman… 

Reider: Oh, I’m sorry.  Yes, I apologize.  John Johansen from the Office of Traffic 
Safety, you want to… 

Johansen: On the response on the interlock, I do not know if there is a bill that will 
address the interlocks again this session.  There are several bill draft 
requests that I just don’t have the information on.  So I can’t answer that 
question whether or not there is a bill this session.  Nobody’s contacted our 
office anyway, let me put it that way. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

24 

Wallin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: If there are no further questions, the Chair will accept a motion for approval 
of the Strategic Highway Safety Plan Annual Report. 

Fransway: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Motion by Member Fransway for approval.  Is there a second? 

Krolicki: I’ll second. 

Sandoval: Second by the Lieutenant Governor.  Any questions on the motion?  All in 
favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously.  Thank you very much. 

Reider: Thank you, Governor.  I have one question.  Am I still retired, Rudy? 

Malfabon: Not yet.  It’s whenever you’re ready, Chuck.  But we do wish you the best if 
you’re not here for the next Board meeting, but I know you’re getting close.  
But, really, thank you for your efforts in trying to drive down fatalities in the 
Nevada, and to you and your staff, it’s a great report.  Governor, the next 
Agenda item was Freeway Service Patrol Program, and Rick Nelson will 
give that update. 

Sandoval: Yeah, please proceed. 

Nelson: This is Rick Nelson, Assistant Director of Operations.  Several months ago 
there were quite a few questions presented regarding Freeway Service Patrol 
and the benefit costs associated with our Freeway Service Patrol Program.  
So over the last few months we’ve been working very closely with Member 
Savage to try to answer the questions regarding the Freeway Service Patrol, 
what it’s all about, what it really costs, what the objective of the Freeway 
Service Patrol is.  I do have a PowerPoint prepared, but we’re having a little 
bit of technical difficulty, so for the sake of brevity, I’m just going to click 
through some high points associated with the benefit cost study that we did 
prepare. 

 You know, the important thing about the Freeway Service Patrol and the 
reason we have the Freeway Service Patrol is about congestion.  Congestion 
costs time and it costs money.  And, for example, Las Vegas in 2001 was 
ranked 31st in the nation with respect to congestion.  That amounts to 27 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

25 

million person hours of delay.  And what is that in real numbers?  That’s 
about $532 every year for every commuter that’s during the peak hour.  So 
congestion really does have a significant impact on the motorists. 

Now, in the material there’s a little chart that talks about the causes of 
congestion.  There are a lot of different things that cause congestion, but the 
two biggies are bottle necks, which represent almost 40 percent of all the 
congestion on the freeways, and traffic incidents, which amount to 25 
percent. 

So as we’re going through our Operations Manual and trying to sort out how 
we best operate the freeway, when it comes to traffic incidents the Freeway 
Service Patrol is one of those key services that we can provide to get 
motorists that are stranded alongside the road, or if there’s some crash or 
something that involves a lane, to get them moving faster.  The faster we 
can get them moving, the smaller amount of delay the rest of the motorists 
on the system will experience.  Now, there are some side benefits to this 
most certainly.  For example, we provide a service to that individual to get 
them moving, help them get their tire changed quicker, help them make that 
happen in a much safer way.  But the real reason that we’re there is to help 
mitigate congestion. 

 In the material, there’s two maps that were provided that show the limits of 
the Freeway Service Patrol, and one map for Las Vegas and one map for 
Reno.  Now, one of the things that have come up during these last few 
months as we’ve been working with Member Savage and Madam Controller 
is the fact that we’ve seen anecdotally, I mean, we’ve seen with our own 
eyes that these Freeway Service Patrol vans are helping motorists beyond 
the limits that we defined in the contract.  And that has happened over time 
as we interact with the Nevada Highway Patrol where we’re working with 
them to provide this service and help them do their job. 

One of the things though that is important to us when it comes to our cost 
responsibilities and the responsibilities of the contract are we’ve defined 
these limits and we’re working with the Highway Patrol to make sure they 
understand we want the Freeway Service Patrol to be in areas where there is 
the greatest concentration of congestion.  That’s where the greatest bang for 
our buck occurs and it’s where the greatest help for the motorist is.  By 
concentrating in these high areas of congestion, we can keep our incidence 
counts up.  We can help more people.  We can mitigate the congestion in the 
core of the city.  So that’s taking place right now in cooperation with the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

26 

Highway Patrol to make sure that everyone knows where the Freeway 
Service Patrol is supposed to operate. 

 So we launched into a benefit cost study.  And as we went through this, 
looking at how to define benefits and costs, one of the key things to 
remember is these incidents tend to be random events.  There isn’t a person 
that says, okay, today at eight o’clock I’m going to break down at this 
interchange.  So they do tend to be random events.  So what that means is 
it’s very difficult for us to physically measure the improvement in delay.  
You know, to do that you would have to say, okay, we’re going to leave this 
person to change their own flat tire, and it takes them this long, and we’re 
going to go help the next person, and we’re able to shorten the delay. 

So the way we do this -- the way we do this benefit cost is based on 
simulation.  We’ve got -- there’s very good simulation programs out there, 
and we can simulate the flow of traffic.  What we did was we modeled our 
benefit cost study after a study that was done by the University of Maryland.  
They’re really a national leader when it comes to freeway operations, and 
they’re study is very current and it’s very relevant.  So we took our data, our 
incident data, and we put that into the University of Maryland’s study and 
calculated the benefit cost based on the reduction of delay.  I promised I 
wouldn’t get into any math or calculus or any of that, but… 

Sandoval: There’s some pretty good formulas in here. 

Nelson: But suffice it to say that on the chart that talks about the benefit cost 
analysis, you can actually, if you’d like, we can sit down with you and 
follow the chart through to its logical conclusion.  But what we did -- I 
guess the important thing, because this is a simulated study, we took two 
boundary conditions that basically say with the Freeway Service Patrol we 
can make a 5 minute improvement in delay, or we can make a 15 minute 
improvement in delay, or a 25 minute improvement in delay.  In other 
words, if someone’s stopped, they’re changing their tire, without the 
Freeway Service Patrol it would take them 30 minutes.  We’re saying, okay, 
in the worst case scenario for our Freeway Service Patrol, we’re only going 
to improve his delay by 5 minutes, or we’re going to get him moving in 25 
minutes instead of 30. 

If we take that and -- which is a very conservative position with respect to 
the Freeway Service Patrol, in Reno, we can achieve a 1.17 benefit cost, and 
in Las Vegas we can achieve a 2.78 benefit cost.  And, again, that’s 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

27 

assuming that the Freeway Service Patrol is just barely improving the delay.  
In reality, we believe it’s more in the 15 minute range, which gives us an 
almost 4 benefit cost for Reno and an almost 10 benefit cost for Las Vegas.  
So based on the kinds of incidents that we see in Reno and Las Vegas, based 
on the kinds of delay improvements that we expect to see, the Freeway 
Service Patrol, in our opinion, is a very cost effective way to mitigate 
congestion due to those incidents that occur. 

 Now, what we propose to do as we’re moving forward are two pilots.  We 
plan to pilot a incident response vehicle in Las Vegas.  These vehicles are 
much more robust.  They’re larger.  They have more traffic control devices.  
They have more ability to treat incidents of a more significant nature, 
crashes, heavy vehicles and that sort of thing, so we don’t have to wait for 
heavy wreckers and that sort of thing to show up. 

And in Reno, we propose to self-perform our Freeway Service Patrol during 
the interim period between when the current contract expires and when a 
new vendor could become mobilized to take over that service.  So we’ll be 
able to, in a three month period or so, self-perform that activity in Reno, so 
we can get a feel for another option per se, to provide that service in house.  
Now, we don’t have the personnel to do that in Las Vegas, or the equipment, 
because the program is so much bigger down south.  But in Reno with two 
mechanics and two trucks, we believe we can provide the same level of 
service for the Freeway Service Patrol in Reno for that three-month period, 
again, between when the contract expires and when the next one will take 
over. 

 We’ve included a schedule for the Freeway Service Patrol, the schedule of 
tasks.  The requests are out on the street.  And we anticipate making an 
award for the next round of Freeway Service Patrol in May.  So with that, I 
would happy to answer any questions that you might have. 

Sandoval: Will you give a little more detail with regard to, what did you call it, the 
heavy capacity or what was that, more robust, yes, vehicles? 

Nelson: The incident response vehicle, yes.  The incident -- right now the Freeway 
Service Patrol are operating out of vans.  And just because of the limited 
amount of space in the van, they can’t carry traffic control devices, some 
signs to warn people approaching an incident.  So these will be a much 
larger truck.  They’ll have push bumpers on them so we can actually move 
people off the road.  If we need to, we can set up traffic control in advance 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

28 

of an incident.  If there’s an incident that’s involving a lane, a lot of times, 
you know, it takes a while for our own maintenance forces to mobilize and 
come out to an incident.  If we had that -- if we had those materials available 
to us on an incident response vehicle that’s part of the Freeway Service 
Patrol, we can set up that traffic control much faster to get people moving 
through the incident a lot quicker. 

Sandoval: What will be the distinction between it and when, for example, NHP 
arrives? 

Nelson: Well, NHP has even more limited space to put their traffic control devices.  
You notice their little cones about maybe this big.  We’re interested in 
bringing out larger candlesticks, larger cones, just so we can set up some 
traffic control.  One of the things that really impacts motorists, the gawking 
and so on, are the flashing lights.  It does make things safe, but when it 
comes to moving people over, getting them out of the way, regular traffic 
control devices are a much better way to do that and they’re much safer.  So 
these devices would actually be on the incident response vehicle. 

Sandoval: Have you consulted with the Department of Public Safety on how those two 
will interact? 

Nelson: Yes.  As a matter of fact, we’ve got a TIM Coalition established in Las 
Vegas, Traffic Incident Management Coalition that involves NDOT, 
Highway Patrol, the fire departments, metro, you know, all the agencies that 
are brought to bear during an incident on the freeways in Las Vegas.  They 
meet with great regularity and we’ve actually discussed the use of the 
Freeway Service Patrol, the use of incident response vehicles with all the 
players down there. 

Sandoval: Yeah, I just don’t want DOT stacked on top of NHP stacked on top of the 
fire department stacked on top of perhaps an ambulance response. 

Nelson: We don’t want that either, and that’s one of the things that works against us 
with respect to freeway operations during an incident.  The more people you 
have out there, the more duplication that you have, the greater the incident 
becomes with respect to traffic delay.  And that’s sort of the prime reason 
for the TIM Coalition, is so everybody knows their role, we can assess an 
incident early on and only have those agencies respond that need to. 

Sandoval: All right.  Any other Board members have questions?  Member Savage. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

29 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  I’d like to first thank Mr. Nelson (inaudible) as well 
as other NDOT staff members for gathering and providing the local and 
national data information over the last few months on the FSPs.  It’s been 
very helpful and shall remain very informative as far as moving forward.  
We realize this can be a very delicate issue to the public and the Department 
of Safety.  I know with other Agenda items prior, similar to the Zero Fatality 
Program, it might be worth looking into more communication with 
Department of Safety and looking at the different costs and how things are 
funded.  Currently I believe DOT has funded 100 percent since 1998 in Las 
Vegas, and in 2002 in Reno.  And since 2008 we’ve all been challenged 
with our economic downturn, and we realize safety is our number one goal, 
and shall remain our number one goal. 

And with that being said, Governor, I believe that the pilot program for the 
north can be effective over time.  I believe that other agencies must show 
support, and it should be developed to succeed and not fail.  Whether or not 
mechanics are the correct human resource shall remain yet to be determined.  
So I have a few questions with that, Mr. Nelson.  Were the discussions and 
considerations about other NDOT personnel other than mechanics 
discussed, and were there any other option for the in-house patrol? 

Nelson: Member Savage, we focused in on the mechanic series within the personnel 
classifications because our current Freeway Service Patrol drivers are ASE 
certified.  They understand, you know, basic repairs and that sort of thing.  
We wanted to mirror the Freeway Service Patrol as closely as we could.  For 
us that comes out of the mechanic series.  There might be some different 
grades within that series that make it more appropriate.  We’re going to put 
Mechanic 1s out there, the beginning level mechanics, so they have the 
same training that we require the Freeway Service Patrol to have. 

One of the things that’s important to us as we’re doing these pilots and 
we’re comparing a self-performed activity against a contracted out activity, 
is that we’re using the same measuring stick to measure both sides.  I think 
if we didn’t hold our own pilot program to the same standards as the 
Freeway Service Patrol, we might be criticized for an unfair comparison. 

Savage: So along those same lines, I believe that the Department of Safety is the first 
one to dispatch the Freeway Service Patrol.  And my concern would be, 
again, possible public relations with DPS as well as the public, so I, again, 
would emphasize the communication with the Department of Safety and 
ensuring that the program succeeds internally will be supported by DPS. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

30 

Nelson: Well, just a point of clarification.  The Highway Patrol does not dispatch the 
Freeway Service Patrol.  The Freeway Service Patrol is a roving patrol, so 
their mission is to be out there and be on the move through these congested 
areas so that they can come upon a vehicle before there’s a recognition and a 
dispatch and a send.  So now, there is communication between the Highway 
Patrol and the Freeway Service Patrol, but the principle method of operation 
is for that patrol to be out there patrolling a beat, if you will, to make sure 
that if they come upon anybody that they can respond to that incident right 
away. 

Savage: So along the lines with the mechanics, as far as the mechanics being pulled 
from the service and repair equipment division, and I know our service and 
repair is -- the load is heavy because of the lack of new vehicles, and I want 
to ensure that we don’t jeopardize safety for any of the DOT personnel as 
well.  So I’m sure you’ve looked into that.  And then on some of the 
materials that we’ve received over this past few months, I took interest in 
the fact that 40 percent of the FSPs are done by in-house DOT, 20 percent 
were done by other state agencies, and then the other 40 percent were done 
by private contractors.  And I know Washington and Maryland all perform 
in-house services, so I believe we’re on the right track.  And I thank you, 
Governor, and thank you, Mr. Nelson. 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor, and thank you, Mr. Nelson.  I think you’ve partially 
answered the question I’m going to pose to you now.  And until just now, I 
did not realize whether this service was dispatched or whether they had an 
ongoing patrol, and I think from what I heard from you it’s both.  Am I 
right? 

Nelson: Member Fransway, that is correct.  Again, but they’re principle mode is to 
be out there on patrol. 

Fransway: Okay.  And do these operators and people on patrol, are they trained in 
EMS? 

Nelson: I believe they -- Denise is shaking her head yes, so, yes, there are.  They can 
provide basic first aid and that kind of a response. 

Fransway: Okay.  And are the vehicles marked?  And if so -- I can’t recall -- well, of 
course, I’m the rural guy, so I guess I’ve never seen one. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

31 

Nelson: Hit the first slide.  This is how they’re set up.  They’re very conspicuous 
with flashing lights, identifying themselves as a Freeway Service Patrol.  All 
the Freeway Service Patrol drivers have an emblem, a uniform and a patch 
that identifies them, so when they’re walking up on a stranded motorist, you 
know, we don’t want to freak them out with somebody walking up to them.  
So we want the vans and their uniforms to be very conspicuous. 

Fransway: Thank you.  Sounds like a still need to carry a spare tire. 

Nelson: I would encourage that, yes. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  So what’s the next action, Mr. Nelson?  I mean, I 
know we don’t -- this is an informational item, but as you described, it’s 
going to -- at least for Northern Nevada, it’s going to be going out for an 
RFP. 

Nelson: The next action will be probably in March.  We’ll come to the Board 
requesting the last extension to the current contract in Las Vegas to tide us 
over until the award is made, which hopefully should come to the Board in 
May, to award Freeway Service Patrol to the next set of contractors. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  We’ll move on to the next Agenda item.  And just 
for the benefit of the presenters, I think we’re going to lose the Lieutenant 
Governor at quarter ‘til.  And, Madam Controller, how long do we have 
you? 

Wallin: Until quarter ‘til. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Please proceed with Agenda Item No. 9, which is the 2012 State of 
Nevada Transportation Facts and Figures Book. 

Greco: Thank you Governor.  For the record, Tom Greco, Assistant Director of 
Planning.   And briefly, the 2012 Facts and Figures Book, much like all of 
the other state DOTs offer an annual update of anything and everything that 
you would like to know about the agency.  We started this in 1990.  Our 
goal is that it’s printed and distributed by the end of the year.  We’re a little 
late this year.  I’d like to recognize Dale Lindsey in performance 
management did the lion’s share of this work and research.  What is new in 
this year’s document is a summary and a survey.  And we have delineated 
that the data that’s in the book, even though it’s labeled 2012, is actually 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

32 

June of ‘11 through June of ‘12.  Where there was data available through the 
end of ‘12 we noted that.  But generally speaking, it is a June to June 
database.  And with that, thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  And I, for one, and I’m sure the others may have a 
comment, it’s very well done.  It’s just an excellent, excellent report that I 
spent a lot of time with, and very informative and a job well done. 

Greco: And it is available on our website.  We do distribute it to the legislature.  
And any and all interested, we can get you one of these. 

Sandoval: Do any of the Board members have questions or comments with regard to 
the report?  Thank you very much. 

Greco: Thank you. 

Sandoval: We’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 10, briefing on the status of Boulder 
City Bypass, Phase 1. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Our Project Manager, Tony Lorenzi, will give the 
Board an update on Boulder City Bypass, Phase 1 and some of the right-of-
way issues that I had highlighted in the previous Director’s Report.  Take it 
away, Tony. 

Lorenzi: Thank you, Governor, members of the Board.  Tony Lorenzi, Senior Project 
Manager with the Department of Transportation.  I’m sure most of you are 
somewhat familiar with the Boulder City Bypass Project, so I’ll give you a 
brief status of where we are at now.  For those of you that aren’t familiar 
with it, a look at some of the major project elements, realigning a portion of 
U.S. 93 approximately three miles, a series of a new diamond interchange, 
half interchange, and a series of direct connector and braided ramps to get 
onto the 93 from the 95 and vice versa.  Existing access will be perpetuated 
and we have a project website that is up to date with a lot of exhibits.  We 
have the Environmental Impact Statement, the full document, and just a lot 
of other miscellaneous information that’s useful on the website. 

 Some of the project benefits that we’ll highlight here is the main one 
primarily the signal at the Railroad Pass Casino.  We call that a half signal 
right now, meaning the traffic coming from Boulder City going towards Las 
Vegas is subject to stopping at a signal.  However, the traffic going from 
Las Vegas to Boulder City does not have to stop.  There’s a high T 
intersection there.  It has limited sight distance around a horizontal curve, so 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

33 

it’s a dangerous intersection.  And the primary safety improvement for the 
bypass is pulling the main line away from that casino and creating a much 
safer corridor for the traveling public. 

 We also improve truck operations through the corridor, local circulation and 
this completes the overall bypass.  I know a lot of you -- you know, there’s 
Phase 2 is also underway.  Phase 1 and 2 project overview, let’s see, Phase 1 
is the green section here, approximately three miles.  Phase 2 is about 12 
miles here sweeping below Boulder City.  Phase 2 is currently being studied 
as a future toll road per Senate Bill 506 by the RTC of Southern Nevada.  
Congress has identified this entire corridor as Interstate 11.  Take a closer 
look at Phase 1.  Phase 1 has been split into several packages for delivering.  
Package 1 is strictly right-of-way acquisitions.  We were almost complete 
with those, pending three of the condemnation parcels that we’re going to be 
talking about.  But we had seven private parcel acquisitions, and we had 
some public land transfers from the BLM and the Bureau of Rec. 

 Package 2 was split into a 2A and a 2B.  Now, Package 2 is this green 
frontage road that you see here.  What we did with package 2A is we put out 
an environmental contract where we put up tortoise fencing around the 
perimeter and do all the plant salvaging in advance of getting out there and 
moving all the dirt for the grading with Package 2.  This will help us if there 
are any tortoises.  It’s a protected species.  If there are any tortoises that 
come in the site, they can shut down certain sections and not have the whole 
project being shut down as a whole.  So it’s a way to look ahead and prevent 
that from happening.  So Package 2B will be the frontage road where the 
contractor will come in, bring it to the subgrade, they won’t pave it yet, and 
that will prepare a utility corridor for all the utilities underground that will 
be there. 

 Package 3, as you can see, the black line work here, that’s where we starting 
looking at the mainline paving and structures.  And Package 4 is this 
reddish-brown line work, the other half of mainline as it ties into the 95.  
And we’ve identified this bridge, Package 5, as the railroad mainline bridge 
structure. 

 Now, here’s a photo simulation looking from the Henderson area towards 
Boulder City out this way.  Here’s the Railroad Pass Casino.  And here you 
can see the -- going from Las Vegas to Boulder City, the direct connect 
ramps there.  This is the frontage road that we just talked about, the green 
line.  And this slide here shows the amount of utilities that are in the area.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

34 

There’s literally a dozen utilities that have to be relocated, ranging anywhere 
from underground communications and fiber cable to the large overhead 
power lines.  WAPA is acronym for the Western Area Power 
Administration.  They are moving their towers as we speak right now, and 
there are, I think, five relocated towers and one new one.  And they own 
most of the power lines that are coming out the dam itself.  So there’s a lot 
of utility coordination, a lot of utility construction that needs to take place. 

 A brief look at the schedule, I mentioned Package 1 is the right-of-way 
acquisitions.  They were estimated at originally 20 to 30 million.  Some of 
these are --we don’t know what’s going to happen with these settlements, 
but I believe Rudy briefed you on the last Board meeting.  Okay.  But we do 
have right-of-occupancy for all parcels, so we’re not limited on any of our -- 
we can go in and do exactly what we need to do right now.  Package 2A, 
that was awarded to Las Vegas Paving.  They are out there right now putting 
up the fencing and doing the plant salvaging.  We anticipate that being 
completed in mid-summer.  And we are within a week or two away of 
advertising Package 2B.  That’s where they’ll come in and do the rest -- the 
frontage road.  There’s a large retaining wall that will be done there, and the 
remainder of the utility relocations.  And we’re planning on that to pick up 
at the end of the summer right when Package 2A is completed. 

 Package 3 where I mentioned we’ll do the mainline paving.  That’s where 
we really get into the construction of the project.  $46 to $55 million range.  
Right now we’ve targeted that for delivery in 2015.  And Package 4 would 
follow Package 3.  We just don’t have a date.  It’s not identified yet.  And 
Package 5, I mentioned that is a bridge.  That could go by itself after 
Package 4.  It could also be constructed with Package 3, just depending on 
the situation, because it does fall within the Package 3 limits. 

 Over the last several years the bypass has gone through a series of changes.  
A lot of the changes were with the schedule.  Here we list the reasons for 
some of these changes.  Design modifications.  In light of these recent 
condemnation suits that we are looking at, we looked at ways to refine the 
geometry to see if there’s ways we can minimize the right-of-way 
acquisitions or eliminate some of those.  We spent a few months on those 
with the roadway designers, and really, there’s nothing we can do short of 
redesigning a large portion of it, which would be kind of redoing the 
Environmental Impact Statement and kind of starting over at square one 
moving a whole interchange and whatnot. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

35 

So we could do some of the structural refinements, for instance, our Package 
5 railroad bridge, that hit the mainline at a skew, so it made for a large span.  
Well, our designer -- we consulted out to a bridge designer, and they 
realigned the railroad tracks and allowed a shorter span so it cut the bridge 
in half from a $6 million structure down to probably a $3 million or less 
structure. 

So we’ve looked at ways to save money.  We’ve looked at ways to try and 
avoid some of these right-of-way acquisitions, but right now we’re moving 
forward with the alignment the way it is.  I mentioned the three parcel 
acquisitions.  Well, I’ll show you a figure of those in a second.  And also the 
funding.  Over the years, you know, NDOT has prior -- different projects 
with different priorities, and so trying to optimize when we can deliver this 
project versus several of the other projects, that’s just -- we just look ahead 
and see when the best time is to deliver those.  But Packages 3 and 4, at one 
point, those were together.  We’ve split them apart, so we’ve split this into 
multiple packages to accommodate our funding needs. 

 I mentioned the three parcels currently in condemnation.  The first one is 
Jericho Heights.  This red rectangular area is the parcel as a whole.  The 
blue portion -- the blue highlighted portion is the three acres that we require 
for our project.  So we just need a small piece of that parcel.  The appraisals 
came in at $337,000.  Now, that was just for the land value itself.  And as 
Director Malfabon briefed you last Board meeting, the inverse claim could 
be in excess of 60 million.  Yes.  A little bit, yes.  And we’re working with 
the Attorney General and the outside counsel.  It’s just we -- this project has 
-- the large retaining wall that I mentioned, it’s 28, 29 feet tall, 1,200 feet 
long.  This retaining wall’s sole purpose is to bring our project up to meet 
the needs of that development.  So, you know, we’ll get into that I guess in 
the litigation, but it just -- everything we’ve done with this project 
accommodates the future development of Jericho Heights.  There were 
several meetings way back when with the developer before I had this 
project, but -- so we’ll see where that goes. 

 Railroad Pass Casino, it’s these squares here.  And, again, we just need the 
blue portion here for our needs.  It’s about 16 acres, appraised at 2 million, 
and I believe right now the casino is saying with damages their appraisal is 
coming in at the $12 million range.   (Inaudible), this parcel here, as you can 
see, we are requiring about 60 percent of that parcel for an ease.  That’s the 
one where we really looked at, you know, truncating this frontage road to 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

36 

avoid going through this parcel.  But, again, without realigning or without 
moving this entire interchange, there’s really no way to avoid this.  We 
could have lessened the acreage needed for the acquisition, but it wouldn’t 
have done -- we would still be facing the same outcome.  We may save a 
few hundred thousand dollars in right-of-way costs, acquisition costs, but it 
would cost more than that to make the design changes.  So with that, I’ll be 
happy to answer any questions. 

Sandoval: I have a question.  How do you balance these packages and the spending the 
money and the acquiring of the property against the likelihood of the 
funding of the toll road itself? 

Lorenzi: Wow.  Well, the funding of the toll road -- I hate to defer that, but we’ve 
been kind of -- I’ve been working with the RTC closely throughout this 
whole thing, and then we just did a public meeting down in Boulder City.  
Their analysis so far has shown that the toll would pay for maybe a fourth of 
Phase 2 of the bypass.  You know, we’ll see what the legislators have to say, 
but how we balance it, I’m not sure how to answer that. 

Malfabon: Definitely, Governor, we would look at the other -- the later phases which 
are more costly for Phase 1, which is NDOTs project, and look at stretching 
those out.  Particularly since we feel that the large exposure on the inverse 
condemnation case for Jericho Heights, we probably won’t get that through 
the judicial system for about a year, and we really want to see what -- that’s 
the highest exposure to us, and we want to see what the outcome is from 
that. 

Sandoval: And I think, you know, it begs the comment, I mean, obviously, we don’t 
want to spend a bunch of money on these packages and then not have the 
road built and essentially have our own road to nowhere.  So I think it’s 
important that you keep the Board apprised of what the progress is.  I mean, 
I want to compliment you on all the work and all the planning on this, but as 
I said, it’s a careful balance because we have limited resources and we’re 
looking at Neon as well, and we want to make sure that we put the money 
where it should go. 

Lorenzi: Definitely.  And, you know, from what the attorneys are saying, I mean, 
whether or not this project goes forward now, never or slow, that Jericho 
Heights the outcome is going to be the same.  But this Phase 1 of the bypass 
can be a benefit, a standalone, and have, you know, even if Phase 2 was not 
built for years to come, there will still be a large benefit of Phase 1. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

37 

Malfabon: The other thing to note, Governor, is that we are using federal funds which 
were set aside, so earmarked for the project for this utility relocation and 
initial phases that we’ve gone out to construction with.  We think that’s it’s 
good to use up that money now before Congress could take action to rescind 
that. 

Another point to make is that what the I-11 designation in MAP-21, we feel 
that the efforts that NDOT undertakes are not wasted, that eventually this 
will be a future interstate as Arizona’s studying their portion on their side.  
They have a lot more work to do and a lot more years to go through to make 
that vision become reality.  But on our side we feel that we’ve got our 
environmental document approved and these efforts will not go to waste. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And, Rudy, you kind of answered a question that I’m 
going to ask, and it is whether or not Congress has identified this project as 
part of I-11.  I think I heard you say that. 

Lorenzi: Yes, yes, they have. 

Fransway: Okay.  Is this the first endeavor for I-11? 

Lorenzi: I’m not sure. 

Malfabon: Well, the congressional action in MAP-21 was the first designation.  There 
are two ways to designate a future interstate.  One is through Federal 
Highway Administration action which puts a certain timeline on it.  The 
congressional action doesn’t come with that same restriction of you have to 
deliver that within so many years, which is a substantial amount of time, but 
still, we don’t want to be under that constraint. 

Fransway: Okay.  So the concept of I-11 obviously must be a thought around the 
country now. 

Malfabon: Yeah, it’s supported by Congress.  When they approved MAP-21, they 
designated. 

Fransway: Okay.  And ultimately that’s going to be our interstate from border to 
border, from Mexico to Canada. 

Lorenzi: Yeah, that’s part of the CANAMEX truck corridor, yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

38 

Sandoval: Any further questions? 

Wallin: Governor, I have a question.  Rudy, have you done a -- or have we done a 
cost benefit study on the Boulder City Bypass (inaudible)?  I know that in 
October I think we approved a contract to do some cost benefit studies and 
(inaudible) Project Neon and we had, but it was pretty old, and you were 
going to update that, but I was wondering if we’ve done one for Boulder 
City and how long ago that was. 

Malfabon: Yes.  The benefit cost study was done several years ago.  I don’t know if it’s 
been updated, Tony.  But it is a major project.  We’re required by the 
legislature to do benefit cost analysis on major projects. 

Lorenzi: Yes.  We just finished our financial plan for the FHWA, and we’re going to 
be making annual updates to that, so we do have a current plan. 

Wallin: Can we get a copy of that, please? 

Lorenzi: Yes. 

Wallin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  Great presentation. 

Lorenzi: Thank you. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  We’ll move on to old business, but, Mr. Director… 

Malfabon: We’ll be quick on this item. 

Sandoval: … I’d ask that you take Agenda Item 11E first, the briefing on Project Neon. 

Malfabon: Sure.  It’s along the lines of the update.  What we’re going to do for Board 
briefings is quarterly we’ll have an actual document in the report that gives 
you an update.  But in this month’s briefing, it’s just what I indicated, the 
selection of Ernst & Young and Nossaman as the financial and legal 
advisors respectively.  That’s all that’s occurred.  And those advisors will 
negotiate a contract with them within the next month, get them onboard and 
start getting that advice that’s critical to advancing the public-private 
partnership availability payment concept on this project.  Eventually, 
Governor, on Project Neon, we will also have a public meeting after we get 
more along the way on that concept for delivery. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

39 

 As far as the other items, Governor, 11A is just additional information that 
gives you an explanation of lease to hold agreements for right-of-way.  
That’s where we pay the person that has vacant lease property to hold it 
vacant so that they don’t get a new tenant in and then we have to move them 
out of the way.  So a little bit more information for you.  We have the 
standing report on outside counsel costs on open matters.  And one thing to 
note is that we are spreading out the legal outside counsel work available on 
Project Neon and Boulder City Bypass to try to get more legal firms 
involved in it.  But we all -- we have them work together so that definitely 
the efforts that we’ve seen from outside counsel, Laura Fitzsimmons, have 
really helped to educate the department on how to approach these projects 
that require right-of-way.  And I appreciate, Madam Attorney General, the 
staff in Las Vegas has been very, very reliable and really coming up to 
speed on a lot of cases and they’re doing great work. 

 The Monthly Litigation Report is also provided.  And Dennis Gallagher is 
here so answer any questions that you may have on the Monthly Litigation 
Report.  Seeing none.  The fatality report is provided for 2012.  That’s the 
annual report and, as Chuck Rider showed you, a lot of the statistics 
unfortunately went up in Clark County, but we are working through our 
Strategic Highway Safety Plan implementation to drive those numbers down 
through our Zero Fatalities Program.  And that concludes the old business.  
Governor, next month we should have that final tally on the I-580 including 
all the legal issues and any claim issues that we settled. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Questions from Board members? 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  My question is on the Monthly Litigation Report, 
and I’m noticing where Chapman is -- it looks like they’ve garnered 
$4,592,000 according to what I’m looking at.  And my -- I assume that most 
of this is relative to Neon condemnation issues? 

Gallagher: Yes.  Or related inverse claims from the property owners. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Gallagher: There’s a couple cases, non-Neon related.  The Cactus Interchange down in 
Clark County, but I believe all the others are Project Neon. 

Fransway: Okay.  As we seek federal revenue for this project, will these costs be 
eligible for federal funding as part of the construction? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

40 

Malfabon: Member Fransway, in response, we’ve asked the Federal Highway 
Administration Division Office on that point, and they said provided that we 
program the funds up front, they would be eligible.  So that’s what we’re try 
to do on -- when we realized that we have to hire outside counsel, we 
believe that those should be considered part of the right-of-way costs, 
acquisition costs.  So we just have to program appropriately so the FHWA 
will approve that programming and then will reimburse us. 

Fransway: Okay.  I know we’ll be on top of that. 

Malfabon: But there is a limit, though, that if we have a limit on a project and we 
program all the funds to it, there’s just only so much money available from 
the feds for a project.  So if we’re programming right-of-way costs and 
construction costs, eventually we use up all the federal funds available as 
we’ve always done as a state in order to maximize the use of federal funds. 

Fransway: Okay.  And are these costs that are reflected in our report, have they been 
paid or are they outstanding or both? 

Malfabon: Some of these are outstanding. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: In this one, the last Chapman Law Firm that has NDOT versus Laura 
Fitzsimmons, that’s just the contract with her, correct? 

Gallagher: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: Not sure why it’s listed that way. 

Gallagher: It should not have been. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Malfabon: She has given us a lot of strong advice, but… 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  All right.  Thank you. 

Wallin: Governor, this is Kim.  I just have a follow-up question.  I think it was the 
November Board meeting, or maybe it was October, I had asked Cole to get 
us a chart, when we settled that one piece of property in Las Vegas that 
basically doubled in value in a year, and I said can you go back to tell us 
what you had estimated the cost was going to be to settle it back then, just so 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

41 

we can get a comfort level that our projections on these right-of-ways are 
going to come in with what we’re estimating. 

Malfabon: We’ll follow up on that, Madam Controller, as old business item next 
month. 

Wallin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: All right.  Agenda Item No. 12, public comment.  Is there any member of 
the public here in Carson City that would like to provide comment to the 
Board? 

Malfabon: Governor, I wanted to mention something that I was remiss in last month 
when we had the list of NDOT retirees.  And thank you and the Board 
members for taking the photographs with those that were present.  But I 
forgot to mention some other retirees, and if I just could take just a minute 
to mention some that retired.  Randall Murphy was an Engineer Technician 
in Materials who retired recently.  Lori Bellis was an Environmental.  Dave 
Titzel was an Assistant District Engineer in Reno that covered maintenance.  
Glenn Folkers was an Engineering Tech on Crew 901 in Las Vegas, a 
construction crew.  Kent Sears was a Manager 1.  He was the Traffic 
Engineer in Las Vegas, recently retired in December.  Bill Bowman actually 
ran the permit office up here in right-of-way.  So they did a lot of 
coordination with the permits that come in from the districts, and he retired 
recently.  John Dunt, Maintenance Worker 4 in Carson Maintenance.  Elaine 
Martin, who was really helpful for me throughout my career at NDOT.  She 
was a Management Analyst in Accounting, and very frank and just -- she 
was very… 

Sandoval: We always appreciate that. 

Malfabon: …didn’t pull any punches.  But she also would tell me, you know, what her 
thoughts were.  But she was very helpful on closing out some of these issues 
with local agencies and our agreements with them and billings.  Sharon 
Turner was involved in construction administration in Las Vegas, did a lot 
of work on picking up the projects.  Mike Musgrove is another friend of 
mine, acquaintance from years past when I worked in Vegas.  He was an 
Assistant Resident Engineer that work in Elko for over the last decade, and 
wish him well.  Parviz Noori I mentioned went to work for the Federal 
Highway Administration after he retired from us, so he’s over in North 
Dakota.  He was working in the Materials Division before he retired.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

February 11, 2013 

42 

Lawrence Gordon is a Maintenance Worker 3 in Las Vegas.  And John 
Marden who had, I think, over 40 years, worked in Winnemucca.  We wish 
him well.  I know he gave many years of service to the department and did a 
lot of good work in traffic and permitting there in Winnemucca, utility 
coordination. 

Sandoval: Well, if you would convey the Board’s appreciation for their service to the 
state, I would appreciate that. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor, I will. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Is there anyone present in Las Vegas that would like to provide 
comment to the Board? 

Larkin-Thomason: There is no one here, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  All right.  Then we’ll move on to Agenda Item No. 
13.  Is there a motion for adjournment? 

Cortez Masto: Move for adjournment. 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: We have a motion by the Attorney General for adjournment, second by 
Member Savage.  All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes.  Thank you, ladies and gentlemen. 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             March 4, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      March 11, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 4:  Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from January 19, 2013 to February 15, 
2013. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements and amendments which take the total agreement above 
$300,000 during the period from January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements over $300,000, January 19, 

2013 to February 15, 2013. 
 

Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by:  Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 1 of 28



Attachment  

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 2 of 28



                           Attachment A

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount  Payable Amount  Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend 
Date

Agree 
Type Notes

1 06013 00 VOLT DELTA 
RESOURCES LLC

OPER/MAIN NNG 
511 SYSTEM

N  $   1,920,000.00  $                  -    $     1,920,000.00  $               -   03/12/13 04/30/17           - Service 
Provider

03-12-13: TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN 
NEVADA'S NEXT GENERATION 511 (NNG511) 
TRAVELER INFORMATION SYSTEM. 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20041116361

2 01413 00 NOSSAMAN LLP LEGAL ADVISORY 
FOR PROJECT 
NEON

Y  $   1,400,000.00  $                  -    $     1,400,000.00  $               -   03/11/13 12/31/17           - Service 
Provider

03-11-13: TO PROVIDE LEGAL ADVISORY 
SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS, SHORTLIST, 
AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PUBLIC-
PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP DELIVERY OF 
PROJECT NEON.  CLARK COUNTY.  NV 
B/L#:NV20101338019

3 01513 00 ERNST & YOUNG 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
ADVISORS, LLC

FINANCIAL 
ADVISORY FOR 
PROJECT NEON

Y  $   1,397,957.00  $                  -    $     1,397,957.00  $               -   03/11/13 12/31/14           - Service 
Provider

03-11-13: TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ADVISORY 
SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS, SHORTLIST, 
AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PUBLIC-
PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP DELIVERY OF 
PROJECT NEON. CLARK COUNTY.  NV 
B/L#:NV20131010017

4 49607 04 SAMARITANIA, INC. FREEWAY SERVICE 
PATROL

Y 5,760,445.50$    801,284.00$   9,588,251.00$      -$              3/31/2013 9/30/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 4 3-11-13: TO EXTEND TERMINATION 
DATE FROM 3/31/13 TO 9/30/13 AND 
INCREASE AUTHORITY $801,284.00 TO 
$9,588,251.00 TO ALLOW FOR FINALIZING 
INFORMATION NECESSARY FOR NEW 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP).   AMD 3 08-
09-12: EXTEND END DATE FROM 9/30/12 TO 
3/31/13 TO ALLOW TIME TO PROCESS NEW 
RFP AND INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$1,013,383.00 FROM $7,773,584.00 TO 
$8,786,967.00.  AMD 2 03-29-12: EXTEND END 
DATE FROM 3/31/12 TO 9/30/12 AND 
INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $1,006,570 FROM 
$6,767,014.00 TO $7,773,584.00.  AMD 1 08-26-
11: EXTEND END DATE FROM 9/30/11 TO 
3/31/12 AND INCREASE AUTHORITY 
$1,006,568.50 FROM $5,760,445.50 TO 
$6,767,014.00.  09-25-07:  WORK PERFORMED 
IS OPERATION OF THE FREEWAY SERVICE 
PATROL PROGRAM IN CLARK COUNTY.  NV 
B/L#:NV19971309430

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

 January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 3 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 4 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 5 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 6 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 7 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 8 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 9 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 10 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 11 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 12 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 13 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 14 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 15 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 16 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 17 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 18 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 19 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 20 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 21 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 22 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 23 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 24 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 25 of 28



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 26 of 28



A
pproval of A

greem
ents O

ver $300,000 
                                          P

age 27 of 28



Attachment B 
 

Synopsis of existing Agreement P496-07-050 and Amendments 
 
 

• The four year contract was awarded on September 25, 2007 in the amount of $5,760,445.50. 
The scope of services was to provide cost-free assistance to motorists for a wide variety of 
roadway incidents to reduce congestion on the Las Vegas Metropolitan freeway system. 

 
• Amendment No.1 was executed on August 26, 2011. It increased the contract amount by 

$1,006,568.50 and extended the termination date of the contract through March 31, 2012 to 
allow time to develop an RFP for the combined FSP/IRV contract. The IRV is a pilot program 
that will be used to facilitate quick clearance of traffic incidents and will provide improved safety 
through temporary traffic control services. The amendment also adjusted the operating times 
and routes of the FSP program. 
 

• Amendment No.2 was executed on March 29, 2012. It increased the contract amount by 
$1,006,570.00 and extended the termination date of the contract through September 30, 2012 
to allow time to revise and re-advertise the RFP for the combined FSP/IRV contract.  

 
• Amendment No.3 was executed on August 9, 2012. It increased the contract amount by 

$1,013,383.00 and extended the termination date of the contract through March 31, 2013.  
Although a new RFP was put forth, we found irregularities with the new proposal submittals 
because the proposers were not fully familiar with the disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) 
goal process.  As a result the RFP was terminated in order to allow NDOT to provide guidance 
related to DBE goals to the proposers. 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                          Page 28 of 28



 
MEMORANDUM 

           March 4, 2013 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      March 11, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 5:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded January 19, 2013 to February 15, 
2013 

• Agreements under $300,000 executed January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013 
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the 

Board of Examiners January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013 
 

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 
 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 1 of 11



The attached construction contracts, agreements and settlements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013 and agreements 
executed by the Department from January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013.  There was one 
settlement during the reporting period. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    

 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013 
 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements – Under $300,000, 
January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013 
 

C) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Settlements approved at February 12, 
2013 Board of Examiners meeting 
 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 2 of 11



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 3 of 11



 
 STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED - UNDER $5,000,000 

January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013  

 
1. December 20, 2012 at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read related to Department 

of Transportation Contract No. 810-12, Project No. SP-HQ-1101(010). The project is for the 
HVAC system for the lab building and equipment shop at the Las Vegas maintenance station, 
Clark County.  
 
US Mechanical LLC  ................................................................................................. $802,700.00 
Clark and Sullivan Construction ............................................................................. $1,168,350.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract on January 23, 2013, to US Mechanical LLC in the amount of 
$802,700.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the State will enter into 
contract with the firm.  

 
Engineer's Estimate: $760,062.00  
 
 

2. January 10, 2013 at 2:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read related to Department of 
Transportation Contract No. 814-12, Project No. SP-000M(187). The project is for tenant 
improvements at the newly constructed Roop Street Annex building, Carson City.  
 
Shaheen Beauchamp Builders  .............................................................................. $1,147,500.00 
Reyman Brothers Construction .............................................................................. $1,176,107.00 
K7 Construction  .................................................................................................... $1,178,000.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract on February 5, 2013 to Shaheen Beauchamp Builders in the 
amount of $1,147,500.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the State will 
enter into contract with the firm.  

 
Engineer's Estimate: $1,480,100.00  

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 4 of 11



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 5 of 11



                                          Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount

Payable 
Amount

Receivable 
Amount

Start 
Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

1 04413 00 USGS WATER RESOURCES CLEAR CREEK 
WATERSHED

Y 431,772.00    -              431,772.00    185,500.00    10/01/12 09/30/16           - Coop 10-01-12: NDOT PAYABLE $246,272.00, USGS $185,500 
FOR A TOTAL OF $431,772.00. A JOINT FUNDING 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, 
DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR AND NDOT TO MONITOR THE 
WATER QUALITY IN THE CLEAR CREEK WATERSHED.  
DOUGLAS COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

2 04213 00 ELKO LAND & LIVESTOCK CO 2  PERMANENT 
EASEMENTS

Y 1,500.00        -              1,500.00        -                 01/28/13 12/10/15           - Facility 01-29-13: TO HAVE TWO (2) PERMANENT EASEMENTS 
AND RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES AND RETAINING WALLS, 
EUREKA COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19781007985

3 04313 00 NV ENERGY UTILITY 2296 
FAIRVIEW DR

N 5,219.00        -              5,219.00        -                 01/24/13 01/24/14           - Facility 01-30-13: UTILITY LINE EXTENSION AND BETTERMENT 
PROJECT AT 2296 FAIRVIEW DRIVE, CARSON CITY. NV 
B/L#: NV19831015840

4 05713 00 COX COMMUNICATIONS OCC PERMIT LK 
MEAD/NELLIS

N -                 -              -                 -                 02/12/13 10/19/15           - Facility 02-12-13: OCCUPANCY PERMIT TO PLACE 
TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT INTERSECTION OF 
LAKE MEAD BLVD AND NELLIS BLVD, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV1998135619

5 23612 01 DEPT OF ENERGY WESTERN 
AREA

RELOCATE FAC 
BOULDER BYPASS

Y 2,746,822.94 150,000.00 2,896,822.94 -                 06/20/12 12/31/17 02/12/13 Facility AMD 1 02-12-13: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $150,000.00 
FROM $2,746,822.94 TO $2,896,822.94 TO ADJUST FROM 
ESTIMATED TO ACTUAL COST OF ENGINEERING. 
06-20-12: RELOCATION OF EXISTING FACILITIES FOR THE 
CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT OF US 93, BOULDER CITY 
BYPASS, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

6 04713 00 WASHOE COUNTY SCHOOL DIST SAFE ROUTES TO 
SCHOOL

Y 369,232.00    -              369,232.00    -                 06/01/12 06/30/15           - Grantee 06-01-12: SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL, NON-
INFRASTRUCTURE, FUNDS BIKE AND PEDESTRIAN 
SAFETY COORDINATOR AND PROGRAMS. WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

7 46312 00 NYE CO SR NUTRITION 
PROGRAM

FFY 13 5311GRNT/NV-
18-X034

Y 185,007.00    -              185,007.00    66,623.00      10/01/12 09/30/13           - Grantee 10-01-12: FFY 2013 5311 FUNDS GRANT TO OPERATE THE 
NYE COUNTY SENIOR NUTRITION PROGRAM PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES. NYE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

8 46512 00 NYE CO SR NUTRITION 
PROGRAM

TRANSFER 2010 
ARRA VEHICLE

N -                 -              -                 -                 02/13/13 09/30/15           - Grantee 02-13-13: TRANSFER 2010 ARRA VEHICLE TO NYE 
COUNTY SENIOR NUTRITION PROGRAM. NYE COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

9 47312 00 LYON COUNTY HUMAN 
SERVICES

TRANSFER 2010 
ARRA VEHICLE

N -                 -              -                 -                 01/24/13 09/30/15           - Grantee 01-24-13: TRANSFER 2010 ARRA VEHICLE TO LYON 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

10 03413 00 GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO LSE PRCLS I-080-WA-
022.233/315

N -                 -              -                 515.00           12/01/12 11/30/17           - Lease 01-23-13: TO LEASE EXCESS RIGHT OF WAY AT GRANITE 
CONSTRUCTION'S LOCKWOOD FACILITY, PARCELS I-080-
WA-022.233 AND I-080-WA-022.315, WASHOE COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19631001612

11 03913 00 GOEL VENTURES LIMITED LEASE PCL S-529-CC-
001.063

N -                 -              -                 26,400.00      01/20/13 01/19/28           - Lease 01-29-13: LEASE OF PARCEL: S-529-CC-001.063, CARSON 
CITY. NV B/L#: NV20011138353

12 04013 00 ALISON RACHIELL RENT 1217 RICHARD 
CT LAS VEGAS

N -                 -              -                 29,082.43      01/24/13 02/28/15           - Lease 01-29-13: MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 
1217 RICHARD COURT, LAS VEGAS (PROPERTY 
ACQUIRED FOR PROJECT NEON), CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
 January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 6 of 11



                                          Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount

Payable 
Amount

Receivable 
Amount

Start 
Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
 January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013

13 04513 00 JODA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP LEASE 2910 S 
CARSON STREET

N -                 -              -                 42,150.00      11/01/12 10/31/17           - Lease 01-31-13: MULTI-USE LEASE (TO JODA LTD 
PARTNERSHIP/MICHAEL HOHL) FOR PARCEL S-529-CC-
000.377, AT 2910 S CARSON STREET FOR VEHICLE SALES 
LOT, CUSTOMER PARKING AND LANDSCAPE, CARSON 
CITY. NV B/L#: NV19931019282

14 05013 00 FRED GHELARDUCCI MS HOUSE BLUE JAY 
2

N -                 -              -                 2,400.00        01/21/13 02/28/17           - Lease 01-21-13: LEASE OF A MAINTENANCE STATION HOUSE 
(BLUE JAY #2) TO NDOT EMPLOYEE TO LOCATE STAFF IN 
REMOTE LOCATION IN NYE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

15 09312 01 LIST CATTLE COMPANY LEASE APN: 007-081-
15

N -                 75.00          -                 175.00           03/20/12 02/20/18 02/06/13 Lease AMD 1 02-07-13: TIME EXTENSION FROM 12-31-17 TO 02-
20-18 TO EXTEND LEASE.
03-20-12: TO LEASE PARCEL APN: 007-081-15, PERSHING 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19521000232

16 03213 00 DELL MARKETING LP DELL COMPELLENT 
FOR DATA STORAGE

N 6,496.00        -              6,496.00        -                 01/22/13 06/30/13           - Service 
Provider

01-22-13: INSTALLATION OF DELL COMPELLENT FOR 
ADDITIONAL DATA STORAGE ON OUR STORAGE AREA 
NETWORKS (SAN), CARSON CITY AND CLARK COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV19991113026

17 03713 00 LEMONS GRUNDY EISENBERG AD AMERICA VS 
NDOT/NEON

N 205,250.00    -              205,250.00    -                 01/22/13 01/22/15           - Service 
Provider

01-22-13: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR INVERSE 
CONDEMNATION RE: AD AMERICA VS. NDOT FOR 
PROJECT NEON. CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19741002526

18 03813 00 CARRIER CORPORATION PREV MAINT ON HQ 
CHILLER

N 24,992.00      -              24,992.00      -                 01/29/13 01/31/17           - Service 
Provider

01-29-13: TO PROVIDE MANUFACTURER'S REQUIRED 
PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE TO HEADQUARTERS' 
CHILLER EQUIPMENT.  PROPRIETARY SOFTWARE. 
CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV197910066562

19 04113 00 ANDERSON VALUATION GROUP 
LLC

REAL ESTATE 
APPRAISAL

Y 30,000.00      -              30,000.00      -                 12/01/12 11/30/14           - Service 
Provider

01-29-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR A 
CONDEMNATION ACTION RE: STATE OF NEVADA VS K&L 
DIRT COMPANY, LLC, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20041285225

20 05813 00 CH2M HILL ENGINEERING 
SUPPORT US93

N -                 -              -                 -                 02/12/13 02/12/15           - Service 
Provider

02-12-13: ENGINEERING SUPPORT REGARDING THE 
BOULDER CITY/ US93 CORRIDOR STUDY HISTORICAL 
DOCUMENTATION SUPPORT.  SERVICES PROVIDED AS A 
COURTESY TO NDOT. CARSON CITY AND CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19931065492

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 7 of 11



                                          Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount

Payable 
Amount

Receivable 
Amount

Start 
Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
 January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013

21 22308 02 ZAYO GROUP DS3 LINE/DISASTER 
CONNECTIVITY

N 264,000.00    13,200.00   255,915.00    -                 07/23/08 07/31/13 01/31/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 2 01-31-13: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY $13,200.00 
FROM $242,715.00 TO $255,915.00 AND EXTEND TIME 
FROM 01-31-13 TO 07-31-13 DUE TO CONTINUING NEED 
FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE FIBER 
OPTIC COMMUNICATION BETWEEN NORTHERN AND 
SOUTHERN NEVADA. VENDOR DECREASED COST FROM 
$3,650 TO $2,200 PER MONTH AND INCREASED SERVICE 
BANDWIDTH FROM 50MB TO 100MB.  TIME AND SERVICE 
EXTENSION IS TO ALLOW TIME TO NEGOTIATE NEW 
LONG-TERM CONTRACT.
AMD 1 07-21-10: AMERICAN FIBER HAS AGREED TO 
DECREASE THE COST OF THIS AGREEMENT BY $21,285 
FROM $264,000 TO $242,715 PER THE GOVERNOR'S 
REQUEST THAT VENDORS VOLUNTARILY REDUCE THE 
AMOUNT OF THEIR AGREEMENTS.
07-23-08: INSTALL A FIBER OPTIC LINE FROM 200 S 
VIRGINIA ST, RENO TO 123 WASHINGTON ST, LAS VEGAS. 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ONGOING FIBER 
COMMUNICATION SERVICE NECESSARY FOR THE 
DISASTER RECOVERY CONNECTIVITY BETWEEN 
NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN NEVADA IN WASHOE AND 
CLARK COUNTIES. NV B/L#: NV20061369506

22 01213 00 GRL ENGINEERS, INC. CALIBRATION OF 
HAMMER RIGS

N 3,500.00        -              3,500.00        -                 02/08/13 12/31/13           - Service 
Provider

02-12-13: PERFORM STANDARD PENETRATION TEST 
(SPT) ENERGY CALIBRATIONS ON TWO (2) NDOT 
HAMMER RIGS, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20101856032

23 03113 00 WEBSOFT DEVELOPERS INC DEVELOP PLAN 
PORTAL FORMS

N 24,950.00      -              24,950.00      -                 01/22/13 06/30/13           - Service 
Provider

01-22-13: DEVELOPMENT OF THE PLANNING PORTAL 
FORMS, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20121454363

24 05113 00 R & R SPECIALIZED JANITORIAL WINNEMUCCA 
OFFICE JANITORIAL

N 24,880.00      -              24,880.00      -                 01/31/13 07/31/15           - Service 
Provider

01-31-13: Q3-003-13 JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR THE 
WINNEMUCCA OFFICES. NV B/L#: NV20111211055

25 05413 00 ANDERSON VALUATION GROUP 
LLC

REAL ESTATE 
APPRAISAL 
SERVICES

N 30,000.00      -              30,000.00      -                 02/07/13 02/01/15           - Service 
Provider

02-07-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR A 
CONDEMNATION ACTION - US 93 BOULDER CITY BYPASS, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20041285225

26 05513 00 ANDERSON VALUATION GROUP 
LLC

REAL ESTATE 
APPRAISAL 
SERVICES

Y 30,000.00      -              30,000.00      -                 01/10/13 01/01/15           - Service 
Provider

02-07-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL SERVICES FOR A 
CONDEMNATION ACTION - I-15, BLUE DIAMOND TO 
TROPICANA, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20041285225

27 10211 01 G.C. WALLACE INC. DESIGN WELCOME 
CENTER GOLDFIELD

Y 131,750.00    10,000.00   141,750.00    -                 04/20/12 12/31/13 02/14/13 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 02-14-13: TO CHANGE THE TASK 4 DEADLINE, TO 
REDEFINE SOME OPTIONAL WORK AS REQUIRED AND TO 
UPDATE PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING COSTS AS 
NEGOTIATED PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING.
04-20-12: TO ESTABLISH CONSULTANT AND 
DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES DURING DESIGN 
ENGINEERING, AWARD INPUT, ADVERTISE SUPPORT, 
AND CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING FOR A WELCOME 
CENTER IN GOLDFIELD, NV. ESMERALDA COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19721004148

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 8 of 11



                                          Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount

Payable 
Amount

Receivable 
Amount

Start 
Date End Date Amend 

Date Agree Type Notes

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
 January 19, 2013 to February 15, 2013

28 04012 01 CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS CHEYENNE CIVIC 
CENTER 
IMPROVEMENT

Y 2,484,000.00 119,605.00 2,484,000.00 119,605.00    01/27/12 12/31/15 01/30/13 Stewardship AMD 1 01-30-13: INCREASE RECEIVABLE BY $119,605.00 
TO MAKE CHANGE REQUIRED BY MAP 21 TO HAVE LOCAL 
MATCH.
01-27-12: INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON CHEYENNE 
AND CIVIC CENTER IN CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 9 of 11



Attachment  

C 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 10 of 11



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 11 of 11



1 

 
MEMORANDUM 

          
         February 22, 2013   

 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      March 11, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #6:  Resolution Requesting the State Board of Finance to Issue Highway 

Revenue Refunding Bonds – For Possible Action 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
With interest rates at historic lows the Department, in conjunction with the State Treasurer’s 
Office and their Financial Advisor, is looking into refunding some of the maturities of our 2005 
and 2006 bond issues for a savings estimated to be approximately of $7.1 million. 
 
Background: 
 
Currently the Department has $504.4 million of outstanding bonds; included in this total is 
$119.2 million of the Series 2005 bonds and $153.3 million of the Series 2006 bonds.  The 
covenants of the Series 2005 and Series 2006 bonds contain a provision where maturities on 
and after December 1, 2016 and December 1, 2017, respectively, are subject to redemption 
prior to their maturity date, without premium, on or after December 1, 2015 and December 1, 
2016, respectively. 
 
The State Treasurer routinely reviews the bonds held by the State to see if there is any savings 
potential in refunding current debt with new debt at current rates.  The review considers the 
interest rate of the existing debt and compares it to the current market rates taking into account 
any issuance costs.  In the case of NDOT’s Series 2005 bonds and Series 2006 bonds, 
approximately $7.1 million of potential savings does exist. 
 
Analysis: 
 
If we pursue this refunding opportunity, we would issue approximately $117.025 million in new 
bonds, incur transaction costs of approximately $1,064,530 and be paid a reoffering premium of 
approximately $24,024,248 resulting in anticipated present value savings in the neighborhood of 
$7.1 million.  This equates to an average interest rate of 1.89% as compared to the current 
4.70% we are paying. Ultimately, all figures are subject to change based on interest rates 
available during the time period of the actual bond sale.  The funds received would be placed in 
a restricted escrow until 12/1/2015, at which time we would retire $65,130,000 of our Series 
2005 bonds and then on 12/1/2016, we would retire $58,340,000 of our Series 2006 bonds.  
Attached is a Debt Service Savings and Summary Schedule containing additional details of the 
proposed transaction.   
 
  

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



2 

If for some reason the transaction does not reach financial close, the Department could become 
liable for a portion of the issuance costs.  There are two notable risks in this transaction 
including: 1) the interest rates change after the bonds have been issued resulting in what would 
have been more favorable (or less favorable) rates, or 2) the transaction is determined to be 
non-feasible after the bond rating companies have completed their work, resulting in their costs 
estimated to be approximately $100,000.   
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) Debt Service Comparison Chart 
B) Tentative Financing Schedule 
C) Board Resolution 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of Resolution Requesting the State Board of Finance to Issue Highway Revenue 
Refunding Bonds. 
 
Prepared by:  
 
Scott Sisco, Assistant Director – Administration 



Attachment A



 

JNA Consulting Group, LLC February 4, 2013 

$___________ 
State of Nevada 

Highway Revenue Refunding Bonds 
Series 2013 

 
Tentative Financing Schedule 

 

   Date Activity Participants 
      Friday, 02/08/13 State agency POS sections distributed for update DC 

Friday, 02/08/13 Distribute draft rating presentation FA 
Friday ,02/15/13 Agenda deadline for March 11th Transportation Board meeting  

Tuesday, 02/19/13 Agenda deadline for March 12th Board of Finance meeting  
Friday, 02/20/13 State agencies return information for POS  

Wednesday, 
02/27/13 

Distribute draft Preliminary Official Statement (“POS”) DC 

Thursday, 02/28/13 Due diligence meeting/call to review draft POS and other 
bond documents* 

All 

Thursday, 03/07/13 Distribute revised draft rating presentation FA 
Friday, 03/08/13 Distribute revised draft POS DC 

Monday, 03/11/13 State Transportation Board adopts resolution requesting issuance 
of Refunding Bonds (9:00 a.m.) 

DOT, BC 

Tuesday, 03/12/13 Board of Finance adopts Bond Resolution (a.m.) 
Distribute Buy Nevada Bonds website update 

All 
FA 

Tuesday, 03/19/13 Rating presentation run through (3:00 p.m. conference call) STO, DOT, FA 
Thursday, 03/21/13 Rating Agency conference calls*  

• Fitch:  _:__ a.m. (877-391-8664, guest code ___) 
• Moody’s: _:__ a.m. (877-391-8664, guest code ___) 
• S & P: _:__ p.m. (877-391-8664, guest code ___) 

STO, DOT, FA 

Wednesday, 
03/27/13 

Finalize Buy Nevada Bonds website update STO, DOT, FA 

Thursday, 03/28/13 Rating Received 
Finalize POS for posting 

STO, FA 
DC 

Friday, 03/29/13 Post POS and Buy Nevada Bonds website update DC 
Wednesday, 

04/10/13 
Bond Sale (8:30 a.m.) DOT, STO, BC, FA 

Friday, 04/12/13 Distribute changed pages from POS DC 
Tuesday, 04/16/13 Comments due on Official Statement (“OS”) All 
Thursday, 04/18/13 Print and post OS DC 
Tuesday, 04/30/13 Bond closing All 

   

Attachment B



 
State of Nevada 2012A-E Bonds/Issuance Scheduled 

   
   
   
 JNA Consulting Group, LLC                                                                                   January 12, 2012  
 

 
* Dialing information for conference calls (877) 391-8664/2001#.  Passcode is different for rating calls 
 
Participants Key 

STO =State Treasurer’s Office DOT= Department of Transportation 

BC= Swendseid & Stern DC=Hawkins Delafield 

FA=JNA/Montague DeRose  
 

Attachment B



1.
456637-NYA.NYA

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE STATE BOARD OF 
FINANCE TO ISSUE HIGHWAY REVENUE REFUNDING 
BONDS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA AND PROVIDING 
OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) 408.273, the Board of 

Directors of the Nevada Department of Transportation (the “Board of Directors”) of the State of 

Nevada (the "State") previously requested the State Board of Finance (the “Finance Board”) to issue 

the State of Nevada Highway Improvement Revenue (Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax) Bonds, Series 2005

in the initial aggregate principal amount of $191,445,000 (the “2005 Bonds”) and the State of 

Nevada Highway Improvement Revenue (Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax) Bonds, Series 2006 in the initial 

aggregate principal amount of $192,730,000 (the “2006 Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 349.330, the Finance Board is authorized to issue 

bonds for the purpose of refunding, paying and discharging all or a portion of the outstanding 2005

Bonds and 2006 Bonds to reduce interest costs or effect other economies; and

WHEREAS, interest rates have declined since the issuance of the 2005 Bonds and 

2006 Bonds.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors that:

Section 1. The Board of Directors hereby requests the Finance Board to issue 

Highway Revenue (Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax) Refunding Bonds (the “Refunding Bonds”) for the 

purpose of refunding, paying and discharging all or a portion of the 2005 Bonds and 2006 Bonds, 

including the costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds (the “Refunding Project”), in the aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed the amount sufficient to effect the Refunding Project.

Section 2. The Secretary of the Board of Directors is authorized and directed to 

forward a signed copy of this resolution to the Finance Board. 

Attachment C



2.
456637-NYA.NYA

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED on March 11, 2013. 

State of Nevada, Department of Transportation 
Board of Directors

__________________________________
Chairman 

__________________________________
Secretary to the Board of Directors

Approved to Legality and Form:

___________________________________
Chief Deputy Attorney General

Attachment C



















 

 

 February 26, 2013   
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: March 11, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #8: Old Business  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment B. 
 
c. Fatality Report dated February 20, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
A. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
B. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
C. Fatality Report dated February 20, 2013 – Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Rudy Malfabon, Director 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP -  9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                    125,000.00 
 Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                       80,000.00 
 Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                       30,000.00 
 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                       30,000.00 
 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                    365,000.00  $                630,000.00  $                  229,746.89 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Ad America

 8th JD  - 4 Eminent Domain Cases
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P301-11-004

6/14/2011 - 8/31/13 6/14/2011  $                    281,675.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  Expansion of Scope  $                281,675.00  $                    78,844.17 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00030 1B
 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)
 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                    150,000.00 

 $                150,000.00  $                    48,697.58 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00032 1B
Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)
 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                    150,000.00 

 $                150,000.00  $                      1,252.47 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.

Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 
Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                       30,000.00 

 $                  30,000.00  $                    28,125.50 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Blue Diamond R.V. and Storage

 8th JD A610962
RE:  Work Order 20359000
NDOT Agmt No. P155-12-004

4/24/2012 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                    107,425.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  $                       88,250.00  $                195,675.00  $                    20,878.73 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Vegas Group, LLC

 8th JD A-12-661241-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P156-12-004

4/24/12 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $                541,800.00  $                  438,304.12 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders

8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $                541,800.00  $                  515,841.06 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF February 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name

Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

G:\NDOT\004LegalManager\Board of Transportation\Outside Counsel Report NDOT Board of Director Meetings\Outside Counsel Contracts BOD 2-15-13.xls

Attachment A



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF February 15, 2013
Vendor Case/Project Name

Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall

 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $                541,800.00  $                  522,810.15 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust

 8th JD - 12-665880-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004

10/23/12 - 10/12/14 10/23/2012  $                    475,725.00 

 $                475,725.00  $                  451,439.28 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust

 8th JD - A-12-671920-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P476-12-004

11/16/12 - 11/30/15 11/16/2012  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  443,328.43 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA

 8th JD - A-12-658642-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    455,525.00 

 $                455,525.00  $                  455,525.00 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980

 8th JD - 
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  449,575.00 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC

 8th JD - A-12-671915-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  449,575.00 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation
NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004

12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/2012  $                    300,000.00 

 $                300,000.00  $                  273,680.00 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)

 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/2013 $205,250.00 

 $                205,250.00  $                  205,250.00 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 

cecommendations, negotiation support and 

advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling of 

NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                       77,750.00 

 $                  77,750.00  $                    77,750.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

G:\NDOT\004LegalManager\Board of Transportation\Outside Counsel Report NDOT Board of Director Meetings\Outside Counsel Contracts BOD 2-15-13.xls

Attachment A



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - February 15, 2013       

NDOT Owner's

Offer Demand Settlement Fees Costs Total

Condemnations

NDOT vs. 2.5 Acres @ Dean Martin, LLC Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 3,000.00$            

NDOT vs. AD America, Inc.  (Cactus - Direct) Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 360,000.00$        1,850,000.00$       10,477.39$   38,633.75$    49,111.14$     

NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust, Carmine V. Eminent domain  - Project Neon 247,000.00$        5,035.00$     1,211.57$      6,246.57$       

NDOT vs. Falcon Capital Eminent domain  -  I-580 8,167.00$            33,589,000.00$     20,776,268.60$     

NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare Eminent domain  - Project Neon 1,860,000.00$     

NDOT vs. Gendall Trust Eminent domain  - Project Neon 1,645,000.00$     17,216.00$   1,773.85$      18,989.85$     

NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC Eminent domain  - Project Neon 2,926,650.00$     

NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC Eminent domain  - Project Neon 5,479,200.00$     

NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 353,000.00$        8,977,729.00$       

NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders Eminent domain - Project Neon 883,400.00$        23,830.00 2,128.94 25,958.94$     

NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 337,000.00$        

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 2,083,000.00$     

NDOT vs. KP & TP, LLC, Roohani, Khusrow Eminent domain  - I-15 and Warm Springs 10,800.00$          101,900.00$          

NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA Eminent domain - Project Neon 1,901,300.00$     

NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 2,041,000.00$     12,700,000.00$     

NDOT vs. Union Pacific Railroad Co. Eminent domain - Recnstr.  of SR 317

NDOT vs. Vegas Group, LLC Eminent domain - Project Neon 4,720,000.00$     10,625,000.00$     77,565.52 25,930.63 103,496.15$   

NDOT vs. Woodcock, Jack Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 63,500.00$          250,000.00$          

NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 1,286,303.00$     10,000,000.00$     

Case Name
J

u
Nature of Case

Outside Counsel to Date

Page 1

Attachment B



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - February 15, 2013       

Plaintiff's

Prayer/Offer Settlement Fees Costs Total
Inverse Condemnations

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (Cactus-Inverse) Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 127.22$          11,132.50$     11,259.72$      

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON-Inverse) Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 15,812.55$      114,654.50$   130,467.05$    

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (SouthPoint) Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 419.37$          11,573.55$     11,992.92$      

Blue Diamond RV & Storage vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road 875,000.00$   158,585.47$    16,210.80$     174,796.27$    

MLK-ALTA vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

NV Energy vs. Highland A.V.A and NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

NV Energy vs. Westcare Works and NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

P8 Arden, LLC vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road

Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 23,087.50 1,198.22 24,285.72$      

Rural Telephone vs. Dorsey Ln, NDOT Public utility seeks permanent easement

Torts

Estate of Armstrong vs. State Plaintiff alleges negligence and wrongful death

Allstate Insur. vs. Las Vegas Paving;NDOT Plaintiff alleges property damage and negligence

Austin, Renee vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Calkins, Allan Bruce vs. Baptista vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence personal injury (3rd party)

Chadwick, Estate of Lonnie Joe vs. NDOT Estate alleges transfer of property without court order

Ewasko vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence in design of truck ramp

Garza, Gilbert, et al. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing wrongful death 330,152.00$   

Harper, Kenneth J. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence/personal injury/wrongful death

Road & Highway Builders vs. Granite; NDOT Plaintiff alleges wrongful contract award

Marshall, Charles vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges personal injury

NDOT vs. Tamietti NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access

State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence in failure to maintain roadway

Tefft vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff's allege breached duty in construction of median

Contract Disputes

Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3377, SR 207 6,461.53$       142,286.00$   148,747.53$    

Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3407, US-93 3,250.92$       98,051.50$     101,302.42$    

Pacific Coast Steel vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges delays/incomplete design on I-580 Galena 33,306.00$      600.28$          33,906.28$      

Personnel Matters

Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment violation - discrimination

Cooper, Jennifer vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff appeals trial verdict of alleged decrimination

Lau, Stan vs. State, NDOT Plaintiff is appealing termination

Case Name
J

u
Nature of Case

Outside Counsel to Date

Page 2

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  2/20/2013

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Yesterday Crashes Fatals Yesterday Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

2/19/2013 1 1 2/19/2012 1 1 0 0
MONTH 14 14 MONTH 19 22 -5 -8
YEAR 37 37 YEAR 40 44 -3 -7

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY 2012 2013 % 2012 2013 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 2 #DIV/0! 2 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
CHURCHILL #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
CLARK 31 28 -9.7% 35 28 -20.0% 10 2 -80.0% 10 2 -80.0%
DOUGLAS 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 #DIV/0! 1 #DIV/0!
ELKO 2 -100.0% 2 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
ESMERALDA #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
EUREKA #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
HUMBOLDT 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0%
LANDER #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
LINCOLN 2 #DIV/0! 2 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 1 #DIV/0!
LYON #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
MINERAL #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
NYE 3 -100.0% 3 -100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
PERSHING #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
STOREY #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
WASHOE 2 4 100.0% 2 4 100.0% 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0%
WHITE PINE #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

YTD 40 37 -7.5% 44 37 -15.9% 13 4 -100.0% 13 5 -61.5%
TOTAL 12 234 ----- -84.2% 258 ----- -85.7% 37 -89.19% 42 ----- -88.10%

2012 AND 2013 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2012 2013 2012 2013
COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2012 2013 % Motor- Motor- % 2012 2013 % 2012 2013

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change Other Other

CARSON 1 #DIV/0! 1 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
CHURCHILL #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
CLARK 22 16 -27.3% 5 7 40.0% 6 4 -33.3% 1 1 0.0% 1
DOUGLAS 1 #DIV/0! 1 -100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
ELKO 2 -100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
ESMERALDA #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
EUREKA #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
HUMBOLDT 1 -100.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
LANDER #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
LINCOLN 2 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
LYON #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
MINERAL #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
NYE 1 -100.0% 1 -100.0% #DIV/0! 1 -100.0%
PERSHING #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
STOREY #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
WASHOE 1 3 200.0% 1 1 0.0% #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
WHITE PINE #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

YTD 27 23 -14.8% 8 9 12.5% 6 4 -33.3% 2 1 -50.0% 1 0
TOTAL 12 156 -85.26% 58 -84.48% 37 -89.19% 3 -66.67% 4

Total 2012 258

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C


	Agenda 
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Attachment A
	Line Item 1
	Line Item 2
	Line Item 3
	Line Item 4 


	Item 5
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	Item 6
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	Item 7a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4

	Item 8
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C




